UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
X QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009
OR
0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the Transition Period from to

Commission File Number 0-10909

NEOSTEM, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE 22-2343568
(State or other jurisdiction of (L.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
420 LEXINGTON AVE, SUITE 450 NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10170
(Address of principal executive offices) (zip code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: 212-584-4180

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the
past 90 days. Yes x No o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes o Noo

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o
Non-accelerated filer o (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes o No x
36,512,700 SHARES, $.001 PAR VALUE, AS OF NOVEMBER 4, 2009

(Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date)

1




INDEX

Part I - Financial Information:
Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited):

Consolidated Balance Sheets
At September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008

Consolidated Statements of Operations
for the three months and nine months
ended September 30, 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the nine months ended

September 30, 2009 and 2008

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About

Market Risk
Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Part II - Other Information:

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of
Proceeds

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securityholders

Item 5. Other Information

Item 6. Exhibits
Signatures

Page No.

6-28

35-46

46

46

47

47

47-48

48

48

48

49-50

51




ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Intangible Asset

Other assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Notes payable

Unearned revenues

Dividends Payable

Capitalized lease obligations — current portion

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Convertible Redeemable Series D Preferred stock; liquidation value $12.50 per share; 1,293,251 shares issued and

outstanding

Stockholders’ Equity:

Preferred stock; authorized, 5,000,000 shares
Series B convertible redeemable preferred stock,

liquidation value 10 shares of common stock per share; $0.01 par value; authorized, 825,000 shares; issued and outstanding,

10,000 shares

Common stock, $.001 par value; authorized,
500,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding,
8,593,970 at September 30, 2009 and
7,715,006 at December 31, 2008

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements

NEOSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)
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September 30, December 31,
2009 2008
$ 5,848,801 $ 430,786
180,327 -
163,655 7,193
196,256 92,444
6,389,039 530,423
721,373 99,490
558,169 558,169
607,381 633,789
326,879 2,445
$ 8,602,841 $ 1,824,316
$ 342,027 % 508,798
1,335,980 427,767
146,700 -
199,028 9,849
655,868 -
- 14,726
2,679,603 961,140
2,679,603 961,140
7,737,448 -
100 100
8,593 7,715
52,612,679 40,849,670
(54,427,998) (39,994,309)

(7,584) -
(1,814,210) 863,176
$ 8,602,841 $ 1,824,316




Revenues

Direct costs

Gross profit

Selling, general, administrative and research
Operating loss

Other income (expense):

Interest income

Interest expense

Net loss

Dividends Series D Preferred Stock

Net loss attributable to Common Shareholders

Net loss per common share
Weighted average
common shares outstanding

NEOSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ 85,067 $ 25,248 $ 157,709 $ 49,469
53,121 8,839 92,940 12,747
31,946 16,409 64,769 36,722
7,263,243 1,935,743 13,809,439 6,839,461
(7,231,297) (1,919,334) (13,744,670) (6,802,739)
13,123 686 25,816 2,398
(1,038) (3,066) (58,966) (10,335)
(7,219,212) (1,921,714) (13,777,820) (6,810,676)
(404,141) - (655,868) -
$ (7,623,353) $ (1,921,714) $ (14,433,688) $ (6,810,676)
$ (0.90) $ (0.30) $ (1.78) $ (1.22)
8,511,150 6,381,588 8,096,469 5,594,701




NEOSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Common shares issued and stock options granted for services rendered
Depreciation and amortization

Bad debt provision

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Unearned revenues

Accrued dividends

Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net Proceeds from issuance of convertible redeemable preferred stock and warrants
Net Proceeds from issuance of Common Stock

Proceeds from advances on notes payable

Payments of capitalized lease obligations

Cash restricted as collateral for bank loan

Repayments of notes payable

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the period for:

Interest

Supplemental Schedule of Non-cash Financing Activities:
Issuance of restricted common stock for services
Issuance of common stock for services rendered
Forfeiture of restricted common stock for compensation
Issuance of common stock for compensation

Issuance of warrants for services

Issuance of common stock for payment of debt
Compensatory element of stock options

Vesting of restricted common stock during period

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

For the Nine Months Ended

September 30,
2009 2008

$ (14,433,688) $ (6,810,676)
3,832,116 3,175,610
96,506 58,928
- 21,500
(156,464) (8,413)
(436,831) (87,295)
189,179 2,251

655,868 -
741,443 9,845
(9,511,871) (3,638,250)
(690,981) (7,296)
(690,981) (7,296)
15,669,220 -
- 2,148,635
1,431,453 131,617
(14,726) (18,574)

(180,327)

(1,284,753) (125,992)
15,620,867 2,135,686
5,418,015 (1,509,860)
430,786 2,304,227
$ 5,848,801 $ 794,367

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2009 2008
$ 17,823 $ 10,335
343,433 -
313,515 500,284

- (8,021)

555,750 132,534

92,868 345,403

- 5,646

2,766,566 1,466,835
103,417 732,929




NEOSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - The Company
NeoStem, Inc. (“NeoStem” or the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in September 1980 under the name Fidelity Medical
Services, Inc. Our corporate headquarters is located at 420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 450, New York, NY 10170, our telephone number is (212) 584-4180 and our
website address is www.neostem.com.

NeoStem is engaged in the business of developing stem cell therapies, pursuing anti-aging initiatives and is operating a network of adult stem cell collection centers
that are focused on enabling people to donate and store their own (autologous) stem cells when they are young and healthy for their personal use in times of future
medical need.

As part of our adult stem cell banking business we have developed a network of adult stem cell collection centers in major metropolitan areas of the United

States. Each collection center agreement is effectively a license that grants a physician practice the right to participate in our stem cell collection network and
access to our stem cell banking technology, which includes our know-how, trade secrets, copy rights and other intellectual property rights owned by us and utilized
in connection with the delivery of stem cell collection services. Our stem cell banking technology is proprietary and the subject of pending patent

applications. The terms of NeoStem’s collection center agreements are substantially similar. NeoStem grants to each physician practice serving as a collection
center a non-exclusive license to use its trademarks and intellectual property but otherwise retains all rights thereto, and each collection center is bound by
confidentiality obligations to NeoStem and non-competition provisions. NeoStem provides adult stem cell processing and storage services, as well as expertise and
certain business, management and administrative services of a non-clinical nature in support of each physician practice serving as a collection center. In each case,
the physician practice agrees that NeoStem will be its exclusive provider of adult stem cell processing and storage, management and other specified services. The
agreements also make clear that since NeoStem is not licensed to practice medicine, NeoStem cannot and does not participate in clinical care or clinical decision
making, both of which are exclusively the responsibility of the collection center (i.e., the responsibility of the physician or the medical practice). The agreements
provide for the payment to NeoStem by the collection center of specified upfront licensing fees and license maintenance fees. As part of the licensing program,
NeoStem also provides marketing and administrative support services. NeoStem does not have any equity or other ownership interest in any of the physician
medical practices that serve as collection centers. Each of the agreements is for a multi-year period, depending on the particular center, and typically has an
automatic renewal provision for consecutive one year periods at the end of the initial term that also permits either party to terminate prior to renewal. The
agreements may also relate to a territory from which patients seek collection services. The agreements contain insurance obligations and indemnification
provisions, limitations on liability and other standard provisions. Generally, the agreements may be terminated by either party with prior written notice in the event
of an uncured material breach by the other party and may be terminated by either party in the event of the other party’s bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or
other similar circumstances, or, depending on the agreement, certain other specified occurrences.

We have also entered the research and development arenas, through the acquisition of a worldwide exclusive license of VSEL™ Technology, an early-stage
technology that utilizes very small embryonic-like stem cells that exist in adult human bone marrow. Very small embryonic-like stem cells have many physical
characteristics typically found in embryonic stem cells, including the ability to differentiate into specialized cells found in substantially all the different types of
cells and tissue that make up the body. We have also licensed the rights to other stem cell technologies and continue to seek additional opportunities in this arena.

On January 19, 2006, we consummated the acquisition of the assets of NS California, Inc., a California corporation (“NS California”) relating to NS California’s
business of collecting and storing adult stem cells. Effective with the acquisition, the business of NS California became our principal business, rather than our
historic business of providing capital and business guidance to companies in the healthcare and life science industries. The Company provides adult stem cell
processing, collection and banking services with the goal of making stem cell collection and storage widely available, so that the general population will have the
opportunity to store their own stem cells for future healthcare needs. The Company is also pursuing other technologies to advance its position in the field of stem
cell tissue regeneration.

On August 9, 2007, the Company’s Common Stock commenced trading on the American Stock Exchange (now NYSE Amex) under the symbol “NBS.”




In connection with carrying out its expansion objectives in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), NeoStem has recently established a wholly foreign owned
subsidiary in China, known as NeoStem (China), Inc. (“WFOE” or “NeoStem China”). The WFOE is domiciled in Qingdao and under its scope of business
approved by the Chinese regulatory authorities, the WFOE may engage in the research & development, transfer and technological consultation service of bio-
technology, regenerative medical technology and anti-aging technology (excluding the development or application of human stem cell, gene diagnosis and
treatment technologies); consultation of economic information; import, export and wholesaling of machinery and equipments (the import and export do not involve
the goods specifically stipulated in/by state-operated trade, import & export quota license, export quota bidding, export permit, etc.). As of September 30, 2009 we
have invested $2,900,000 to capitalize the WFOE. In furtherance of complying with PRC’s foreign investment prohibition on stem cell research and development,
clinical trials and related activities, we conduct our current business in the PRC via the following two domestic variable interest entities (“VIEs”):

Qingdao Niao Bio-Technology Ltd. (“Qingdao Niao”) is a Chinese domestic company controlled by the WFOE through various business agreements. Under its
scope of business approved by the registration authorities, Qingdao Niao may engage in research and development in, transfer of and technical consultation in bio-
cell technology, gene technology and regenerative medical technology. Qingdao Niao is wholly owned by a PRC national who is also Qingdao Niao’s Legal
Representative and Executive Director.

Beijing Ruijieao Bio-Technology Ltd. (“Beijing Ruijieao”) is a Chinese domestic company controlled by the WFOE through various business agreements. Under
its scope of business approved by the registration authorities, Beijing Ruijieao may engage in technology development, technology transfer, technology
consultation and technology services. Beijing Ruijieao is wholly owned by a PRC national who is also Beijing Ruijieao’s Legal Representative and Executive
Director. The main activity of Beijing Ruijieao is to establish an R&D lab in Beijing and to act as one of the sharing beneficiaries of any potential financial benefits
generated from commercialization of successful clinical trials conducted jointly from collaborations between the lab and partner hospitals.

The capital investment in these VIEs is funded by NeoStem through the WFOE and recorded as interest-free loans to the shareholders of Qingdao Niao and Beijing
Ruijieao. As of September 30, 2009 approximately $307,500 has been loaned to the shareholder of Qingdao Niao to capitalize Qingdao Niao and approximately
$16,000 has been loaned to the shareholder of Beijing Ruijieao to capitalize Beijing Ruijieao.

According to the current PRC regulation, the development and application of human stem cell technology are placed in the “prohibited” category, off limits to
foreign investors. This policy prohibition precludes NeoStem from participating directly in stem cell related business in China. NeoStem does not have direct
ownership interests in either Qingdao Niao or Beijing Ruijieao. Under various contractual agreements, the shareholders of the VIEs are required to transfer their
ownership interests in these entities to the WFOE in China in the event Chinese laws and regulations allow foreign investors to hold ownership interests in the
VIESs, or to our designees at any time for the amount of, to the extent permitted by Chinese laws, outstanding loans. The shareholders of the VIEs have entrusted us
to appoint the directors and senior management personnel of the VIEs on their behalf. Through the WFOE, we have entered into exclusive technical and
management service agreements with each VIE, under which the WFOE is providing technical and management services to the VIEs in exchange for substantially
all net income of the VIEs. In addition, shareholders of the VIEs have pledged their equity interests in the VIEs to the WFOE as collateral for non-payment of loans
or for fees on technical and management services due to us, which equity pledge agreements are now required to be registered with the relevant administration of
industry and commerce to make the equity pledges become effective.

In November 2008 (amended in July and August 2009), the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with China
Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc. (“CBH”), pursuant to which (subject to shareholder approval and certain other conditions) CBH would be merged with and into
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”). The Merger Agreement provided that, among other things, at the effective time of the Merger, the only
material assets of CBH would be CBH’s 51% interest in Suzhou Erye Pharmaceuticals Company Ltd. (“Erye”), a Sino-foreign joint venture with limited liability
organized under the laws of the PRC, and at least $550,000 in cash. Erye specializes in research and development, production and sales of pharmaceutical
products, as well as chemicals used in pharmaceutical products. Erye, which has been in business for more than 50 years, currently manufactures over 100 drugs
on seven Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) lines, including small molecule drugs. The approval of Merger-related transactions was submitted for stockholder
consideration at Special Meetings of Stockholders of the Company and CBH each held on October 29, 2009, and was approved. The Merger closed on October 30,
2009.




Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for interim financial information and with the instructions for Form 10-Q and Article 8 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of
the information and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for complete financial statements. In the
opinion of management, the statements contain all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring accruals) necessary to present fairly the financial position as of
September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 and the cash flows for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008. The results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

The December 31, 2008 consolidated balance sheet has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements at that date included in the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K. These unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) approved the “FASB Accounting Standards Codification” (“ASC”) as the single source of
authoritative nongovernmental U.S. GAAP to be launched on July 1, 2009. The ASC does not change current U.S. GAAP, but is intended to simplify user access to
all authoritative U.S. GAAP by providing all the authoritative literature related to a particular topic in one place. All existing accounting standard documents will
be superseded and all other accounting literature not included in the ASC will be considered nonauthoritative. The Codification is effective for interim and annual
periods ending after September 15, 2009. The ASC is effective for us during our interim period ending September 30, 2009 and will not have an impact on our
financial condition or results of operations.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NeoStem, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, NeoStem Therapies, Inc., Stem Cell Technologies, Inc. and NeoStem (China) Inc. and its variable interest entities, Qingdao Niao Bio-Technology Ltd
and Beijing Ruijiao Bio-Technology Ltd. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents: Short-term cash investments, which have a maturity of ninety days or less when purchased, are considered cash equivalents in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Concentrations of Credit-Risk: Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash.
The Company places its cash accounts with high credit quality financial institutions, which at times may be in excess of the FDIC insurance limit.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts to provide for accounts receivable that may not be collectible. In
establishing the allowance for doubtful accounts, the Company analyzes the collectability of individual large or past due accounts customer-by-customer and
establishes reserves for accounts that it determines to be doubtful of collection. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts necessary at September 30, 2009 and
December 31, 2008.

Property and Equipment: The cost of property and equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the related assets of 3 to 10 years. The cost of
computer software programs are amortized over their estimated useful lives of five years. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method. Repairs and
maintenance expenditures that do not extend original asset lives are charged to expense as incurred.

Income Taxes: The Company, in accordance with SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” recognizes (a) the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the
current year and (b) deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an enterprise’s financial statement or
tax returns. We continue to evaluate under guidance provided by the ASC, the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. The guidance requires companies to
recognize in their financial statements the impact of a tax position if the position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit. The position ascertained
inherently requires judgment and estimates by management. For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and the year ended December 31, 2008, we do not
believe we have any material uncertain tax positions that would require us to measure and reflect the potential lack of sustainability of a position on audit in our
financial statements. We will continue to evaluate our tax positions in future periods to determine if measurement and recognition in our financial statements.
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Comprehensive Income (Loss): Refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under generally accepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive
income but are excluded from net income as these amounts are recorded directly as an adjustment to stockholders’ equity. At December 31, 2008 there were no
such adjustments required. At September 30, 2009 a $7,584 exchange rate loss was recognized which has been reflected on the balance sheet as accumulated other
comprehensive loss as a separate component of stockholder’s equity, in accordance with the consolidation of a foreign operation.

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in a business combination. The Company reviews
recorded goodwill for potential impairment annually or upon the occurrence of an impairment indicator. The Company performed its annual impairment tests as of
December 31, 2008 and determined no impairment exists. The Company will perform its future annual impairment as of the end of each fiscal year, or earlier if
circumstances would indicate.

Intangible Asset: ASC 350-10 requires purchased intangible assets other than goodwill to be amortized over their useful lives unless those lives are determined to
be indefinite. Purchased intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Definite-lived intangible assets, which consist of patents and rights
associated with the VSEL™ Technology which constitutes the principal assets acquired in the acquisition of Stem Cell Technologies, Inc., have been assigned a
useful life and are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of twenty years.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets: We review long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be held and used for impairment on an annual basis and
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. If other events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset that we expect to hold and use may not be recoverable, we will estimate the undiscounted future cash
flows expected to result from the use of the asset or its eventual disposition, and recognize an impairment loss. The impairment loss, if determined to be necessary,
would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.

Accounting for Stock Based Compensation: In December 2004, the FASB issued ASC 718-10, 718-20 and 505-50 formerly, (SFAS No. 123(R), "Share-Based
Payment" ("SFAS No. 123(R)")). ASC 718-10, 718-20 and 505-50 establish standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity
instruments for goods or services. This statement focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based
payment transactions. ASC 718-10, 718-20 and 505-50 requires that the fair value of such equity instruments be recognized as an expense in the historical financial
statements as services are performed. Prior to ASC 718-10, 718-20 and 505-50, only certain pro forma disclosures of fair value were required. The Company has
adopted ASC 718-10, 718-20 and 505-50 effective January 1, 2006. The Company determines value of stock options by the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
The value of options issued since January 1, 2006 or that were unvested at January 1, 2006 are being recognized as an operating expense ratably on a monthly basis
over the vesting period of each option. With regard to stock options and warrants issued to non-employees the Company has adopted ASC 505-50 formerly (EITF
96-18 “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling Goods and Services.”)

Earnings Per Share: Basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the weighted effect of all common shares issued and outstanding, and is calculated by dividing net
(loss)/income available to common stockholders by the weighted average shares outstanding during the period. Diluted (loss)/earnings per share, which is
calculated by dividing net (loss)/income available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares used in the basic earnings per share
calculation plus the number of common shares that would be issued assuming conversion of all potentially dilutive securities outstanding, is not presented as it is
anti-dilutive in all periods presented. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 the Company incurred net losses and therefore no
common stock equivalents were utilized in the calculation of earnings per share. At September 30, 2009 and 2008 the Company had common stock equivalents
outstanding as follows:

September 30, September 30,

2009 2008
Stock Options 4,633,300 1,700,300
Warrants 18,196,780 4,770,997
Series D Stock, Common stock equivalents 12,932,510 -




Adbvertising Policy: All expenditures for advertising are charged against operations as incurred.

Revenue Recognition: The Company initiated the collection and banking of autologous adult stem cells in the fourth quarter of 2006. The Company recognizes
revenue related to the collection and cryopreservation of autologous adult stem cells when the cryopreservation process is completed which is generally twenty four
hours after cells have been collected. Revenue related to advance payments of storage fees is recognized ratably over the period covered by the advanced payments.
The Company earns revenue, in the form of license fees, from physicians seeking to establish autologous adult stem cell collection centers. These license fees are
billed upon signing of the collection center agreement and qualification of the physician by the Company’s credentialing committee and at various times during the
term of license agreement based on the terms of the specific agreement. During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, the Company modified its revenue recognition
policy relative to these license fees to recognize such fees as revenues ratably over the appropriate period of time to which the revenue element relates. Previously
these license fees were recognized in full when agreements were signed and the physician had been qualified by the Company’s credentialing committee. This
modification of our revenue recognition policy did not have a material impact on our results of operations. The Company also receives licensing fees from a
licensee for use of our technology and knowledge to operate an adult stem cell banking operation in China, which licensing fees are recognized as revenues ratably
over the appropriate period of time to which the revenue element relates. In addition, the Company earns royalties for the use of its name and scientific information
in connection with its License and Referral Agreement with Promethean Corporation (see “Related Party Transactions” below), which royalties are recognized as
revenue when they are received.

Fair Value Measurements: We follow the provisions of ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures related to financial assets and liabilities that are being
measured and reported on a fair value basis. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal market at the measurement date (exit price). We are required to classify fair value measurements in one of the
following categories:

Level 1 inputs which are defined as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access
at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs which are defined as inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

Financial assets and liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Our assessment of the significance
of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires judgment, and may effect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement
within the fair value hierarchy levels.

Note 3 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2008, FASB issued ASC 815-40 (formerly EITF No. 07-5, "Determining Whether an Instrument (or an Embedded Feature) Is Indexed to an Entity's Own
Stock") ("ASC 815-40"). ASC 815-40 provides that an entity should use a two-step approach to evaluate whether an equity-linked financial instrument (or
embedded feature) is indexed to its own stock, including evaluating the instrument's contingent exercise and settlement provisions. This statement is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Early application is not permitted. At the present time we do not have any such
equity instruments but we are assessing the potential impact of this statement on our future financial condition and results of operations.
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In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC 805-10,805-20 and 805-30 (formerly FASB Staff Position No. 141(R)-1, Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities
Assumed in a Business Combination That Arise from Contingencies) (“ASC 805”). ASC 805 amends and clarifies ASC 805 (formerly SFAS No. 141(R)). ASC 805
requires an acquirer to recognize at fair value, at the acquisition date, an asset acquired or a liability assumed in a business combination that arises from a
contingency if the acquisition-date fair value of that asset or liability can be determined during the measurement period. If the fair value cannot be determined
during the measurement period, an asset or a liability shall be recognized at the acquisition date if the asset or liability can be reasonably estimated and if
information available before the end of the measurement period indicates that it is probable that an asset existed or that a liability had been incurred at the
acquisition date ASC 805 amends the disclosure requirements of ASC 805 to include business combinations that occur either during the current reporting period or
after the reporting period but before the financial statements are issued. ASC 805 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 and interim
periods within those years. The adoption of ASC 805 has resulted in NeoStem expensing currently pre-merger costs associated with the proposed merger with
China BioPharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc., which amounted to $2,232,000 in the nine months ended September 30, 2009. This statement was effective January 1,
2009.

In December 2008, the FASB issued ASC 860-10 (formerly FASB Staff Position FAS 140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8, Disclosures by Public Entities (Enterprises) about
Transfers of Financial Assets and Interests in Variable Interest Entities) (“ASC 860”). This document increases disclosure requirements for public companies and is
effective for reporting periods (interim and annual) that end after December 15, 2008. The purpose of ASC 860 is to improve disclosures by public entities and
enterprises until the pending amendments to ASC 860 (formerly FASB Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities, and FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities), are finalized and approved
by the Board. ASC 860 amends ASC 815 to require public entities to provide additional disclosures about transferors’ continuing involvements with transferred
financial assets. It also amends ASC 860 to require public enterprises, including sponsors that have a variable interest in a variable interest entity, to provide
additional disclosures about their involvement with variable interest entities. We implemented the requirements of ASC 860 in the second quarter of 2009. As the
requirements of this literature only impact our disclosures, there was no impact to our financial results.

In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC 820-10 (formerly FASB Staff Position No. 157-4, Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset
or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly) (“ASC 820”). ASC 820 provides additional guidance for estimating
fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 157 when the volume and level of activity for the asset or liability have significantly decreased. ASC 820 also includes
guidance on identifying circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly. ASC 820 requires the disclosure of the inputs and valuation technique used to
measure fair value and a discussion of changes in valuation techniques and related inputs, if any, during the period. ASC 820 also requires that the entity define
major categories for equity securities and debt securities to be major security types. ASC 820 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June
15, 2009. We have adopted ASC 820 in our quarter ended June 30, 2009. The adoption of ASC 820 did not have a material impact on our financial position or
results of operations.

In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC 320-10 (formerly FASB Staff Position No. 115-2 and FAS 124-2, Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairments) (“ASC 320”). This FSP amends the other-than-temporary impairment guidance in U.S. GAAP for debt securities to make the guidance more
operational and to improve the presentation and disclosure of other-than-temporary impairments on debt and equity securities in the financial statements. This FSP
does not amend existing recognition and measurement guidance related to other-than-temporary impairments of equity securities. ASC 320 requires the entity to
assess whether the impairment is other-than-temporary if the fair value of a debt security is less than its amortized cost basis at the balance sheet date. This
statement also provides guidance to assessing whether or not the impairment is other-than-temporary and guidance on determining the amount of the other-than-
temporary impairment that should be recognized in earnings and other comprehensive income. ASC 320 also requires an entity to disclose information that enables
users to understand the types of securities held, including those investments in an unrealized loss position for which the other-than-temporary impairment has or
has not been recognized. ASC 320 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. The adoption of ASC 320 did not have a
material impact on our financial position or results of operations.
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In April 2009, the FASB issued ASC 825-10 (formerly FASB Staff Position No. FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1, Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments) (“ASC 825”). ASC 825 amends ASC 825 (formerly FASB Statement No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments), to require
disclosures about fair value of financial instruments at interim reporting periods. This Staff Position is effective for interim reporting periods ending after June 15,
2009, with early adoption permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009 provided ASC 320 (described above) are also early adopted. We adopted ASC 825 in
our quarter ended June 30, 2009. The adoption of ASC 825 did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In May 2009, the FASB issued ASC 855-10 (formerly Statement No. 165, Subsequent Events) (“ASC 855”). ASC 855 establishes general standards of accounting
for and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. We have adopted
Statement 165 in our quarter ended June 30, 2009. The adoption of ASC 855 did not have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 166, Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140. Statement 166
eliminates the concept of a “qualifying special-purpose entity” from Statement 140 and changes the requirements for derecognizing financial assets. We will adopt
Statement 166 in 2010 and are currently evaluating the impact of its pending adoption on our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R) . Statement 167 amends the evaluation criteria to identify the
primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity provided by FASB Interpretation No. 46(R) , Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities—An Interpretation of ARB
No. 51 . Additionally, Statement 167 requires ongoing reassessments of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of the variable interest entity. We will
adopt Statement 167 in 2010 and are currently evaluating the impact of its pending adoption on our consolidated financial statements.

Note 4 - Notes Payable

In order to move forward certain research and development activities, strategic relationships in various clinical and therapeutic areas as well as to support activities
related to the Company’s proposed merger (the “Merger”) with China Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc., proposed share exchange (the “Share Exchange”) relating
to the Shandong New Medicine Research Institute of Integrated Traditional and Western Medicine Limited Liability Company (“Shandong”), other initiatives in
China as well as other ongoing obligations of the Company, on February 25, 2009 and March 6, 2009, respectively, the Company issued promissory notes to
RimAsia Capital Partners L.P. (“RimAsia”), a principal stockholder of the Company, in the principal amounts of $400,000 and $750,000, respectively. The notes
bore interest at the rate of 10% per annum and were due and payable on October 31, 2009, except that all principal and accrued interest on the Notes was
immediately due and payable in the event the Company raised over $10 million in equity financing prior to October 31, 2009. The notes contained standard events
of default and in the event of a default that was not subsequently cured or waived, the interest rate would increase to a rate of 15% per annum and, at the option of
RimAsia and upon notice, the entire unpaid principal balance together with all accrued interest thereon would be immediately due and payable. The notes or any
portion thereof could be prepaid at any time and from time to time at the discretion of the Company without premium or penalty. On April 9, 2009 these notes and
the related accrued interest were repaid from the proceeds of an $11 million offering of units consisting of shares of the Company’s Series D Convertible
Redeemable Preferred Stock and warrants to purchase shares of Common Stock.

In July, 2009, in order to facilitate working capital requirements in China, NeoStem China issued a promissory note to China Xingye Bank in the amount of RMB
1,000,000 ($146,700). The note is due on January 1, 2010 and bears an interest rate of 4.86%. The loan is collateralized by cash in a restricted bank account
totaling 1,229,000 RMB (approximately $180,300).

Note 5 — Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock

In April 2009, the Company completed a private placement financing totaling $11 million (the “April 2009 Private Placement”). This financing consisted of the
issuance of 880,000 units priced at $12.50 per unit, with each unit (the “Series D Units”) consisting of one share of the Company’s Series D Convertible
Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Series D Stock”) and ten warrants with each warrant to purchase one share of Common Stock (the “Series D Warrants”). A total
of 880,000 shares of Series D Stock and 8,800,000 Series D Warrants were issued. RimAsia, a principal stockholder in the Company, purchased $5,000,000 in
Series D Units in the April 2009 Private Placement and thus acquired 400,000 shares of Series D Stock and 4,000,000 Series D Warrants. In June 2009, with a final
closing on July 6, 2009, the Company completed an additional private placement financing totaling approximately $5 million with net proceeds of $4,679,220 (the
“June 2009 Private Placement”). This financing consisted of the issuance of 400,280 Series D Units priced at $12.50 per unit, and a total of 400,280 shares of
Series D Stock and 4,002,800 Series D Warrants were issued. The Company paid $324,280 in fees and issued 12,971 Series D Units to agents that facilitated the
June 2009 Private Placement. The Series D Units issued to the selling agents were comprised of 12,971 shares of the Series D Stock and 129,712 Series D
Warrants. Fullbright Finance Limited, a beneficial holder of more than 5% of the Company’s stock, purchased an aggregate of $800,000 in Series D Units in the
June 2009 Private Placement and thus acquired 64,000 shares of Series D Stock and 640,000 Series D Warrants; the Company understands that all securities
purchased by Fullbright in the June 2009 Private Placement were pledged to RimAsia and subsequently, to the Company. In total, in the April 2009 and June 2009
Private Placements, the number of shares of Series D Stock issued was 1,293,251 (converted into 12,932,510 shares of Common Stock upon stockholder approval
on October 29, 2009) and the number of Series D Warrants issued was 12,932,512.
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Upon the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the voting power of the Company’s Common Stock required pursuant to the Company’s Amended and
Restated By-Laws and the NYSE Amex, each share of Series D Stock was to automatically be converted into ten (10) shares of Common Stock at an initial
conversion price of $1.25 per share based on an original issue price of $12.50 per share; provided that if by October 31, 2009 such affirmative vote was not
achieved, the Company would be required to redeem all shares of Series D Stock at a redemption price per share of $12.50 plus the accrued dividends as of such
date. The conversion of the Series D Stock was submitted for stockholder approval at the NeoStem Special Meeting of Stockholders held on October 29, 2009 and
was approved, and the Series D Stock converted into an aggregate of 12,972,310 shares of the Company’s Common Stock. The total cash required to redeem the
Series D Stock would have been $16,165,638 plus accrued dividends. The Series D Stock had an accruing dividend of ten percent (10%) per annum, payable (i)
annually in cash on April 9th, provided that the shares of Series D Stock remained outstanding on such date or (ii) upon a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
the Company. The Series D Stock (i) ranked senior to all of the Company’s capital stock with respect to the payment of dividends and to the distribution of assets
upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, (ii) did not have any voting rights, (iii) did not have any anti-dilution protection other than standard protection for
stock splits and combinations, and (iv) did not have any preemptive rights. By June 30, 2009 the Company had received $4,304,220 of the net proceeds from the
June 2009 Private Placement and the balance of $375,000 was received on July 6, 2009. The Company has accounted for the issuance of all Series D Stock and
Series D Warrants in the June 2009 Private Placement as of June 30, 2009. The combined net proceeds from the two private placements were $15,669,220. Since
the April and June 2009 Private Placements represent a combination of equities we are required to account for the value of all equity securities associated with
these private placements and assign a portion of the net proceeds received to each equity instrument. We apportioned and assigned the net proceeds of the two
private placements as follows: the value assigned to the Series D Stock was $7,685,768, which includes the contingent value of the beneficial conversion to
common stock of $6,618,000, and the value assigned to the Series D Warrants was $7,983,452.

The Series D Warrants have a per share exercise price equal to $2.50 and are callable by the Company if the common stock trades at a price equal to not less than
$3.50 for a specified period of time. Subject to the affirmative vote of the Company’s shareholders and the rules of the NYSE Amex, the Series D Warrants are
exercisable for a period of five years. The exercisability of the Series D Warrants was submitted for stockholder approval at the NeoStem Special Meeting of
Stockholders held on October 29, 2009, was approved and the Series D Warrants became exercisable through October 2014.

Note 6 - Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock:

In January 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a physician who was retained as a consultant. The term of this agreement is January 2009 through
December 31, 2011. As part of the consideration for providing services, the physician is to receive $24,000 annually, by the issuance of shares of the Company’s
Common Stock under the Company’s 2003 Equity Participation Plan, as amended (the “2003 Equity Plan”) in equal monthly installments of $2,000 on the last day
of each month during the term of the agreement at a per share purchase price equal to the closing price of the Common Stock on the last day of each month, which
payment shall be made in cash in the event shares under the 2003 Equity Plan or any successor plan are unavailable. During the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2009, 3,265 and 15,298 shares of Common Stock were issued, respectively, to the physician pursuant to this agreement. The issuance of Common
Stock resulted in charges to operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 of $6,000 and $18,000, respectively.
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In January 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant which has been providing investor relations services to the Company since 2005,
pursuant to which this consultant was retained to provide additional investor relations/media relations services from January 1, 2009 to May 31, 2009. In
consideration for providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 40,000 shares of restricted Common
Stock, to vest as to 8,000 shares on the last day of each month of January through May 2009. The issuance of such securities was subject to the approval of the
NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009. The stock issued to this consultant had a value of $27,600 of which $0 and $27,600 were charged to
operations during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, respectively, based on the vesting of the Common Stock.

In January 2009, the Company issued to its grant consultant, 20,000 shares of restricted Common Stock, with a value of $13,800 as a bonus under the consultant’s
Consulting Agreement with the Company dated February 8, 2008, in consideration for such consultant being instrumental in the Company receiving a
Congressionally Directed Grant which was included in the Department of Defense Fiscal Year 2009 Appropriations Bill. The issuance of such securities was
approved by the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in January 2009. The Company has entered into a new consulting agreement with this grant
consultant for a one-year term commencing as of January 1, 2009. In consideration for services, the consultant will be issued shares of the Company’s restricted
Common Stock equal to a value of $60,000 based on the closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of execution of the agreement, which has been
determined to be 67,416 shares, to vest as to one-half of such shares on September 30, 2009 and the remaining one-half of such shares on December 31, 2009. The
issuance of such securities was approved by the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009
the Company has recognized $15,000 and $60,000, respectively, as an operating expense relating to these shares.

In January 2009, the Company issued to a marketing consultant 12,000 shares of restricted Common Stock, with a value of $8,280, pursuant to the terms of a three
month consulting agreement entered into in October 2008, scheduled to vest pursuant to the agreement as to 4,000 shares at the end of each 30 day period during
the term. The issuance of such securities was approved by the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in January 2009. The issuance of Common Stock
resulted in charges to operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 of $0 and $8,280, respectively.

In January 2009, the Company issued to a member of its Scientific Advisory Board 20,000 shares of Common Stock under the 2003 Equity Plan, with a value of
$15,000, in consideration of this individual’s contribution to a special project related to the design of a cardiac stem cell clinical trial for end stage cardiomiopathy
anticipated to be conducted in the People’s Republic of China. The issuance of Common Stock resulted in charges to operations for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2009 of $0 and $15,000, respectively.

In February 2009, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with a one year term commencing March 1, 2009, with a physician to provide services to the
Company including providing medical expertise in the areas of apheresis and laboratory medicine and to serve (as needed) as medical director for centers in the
Company’s stem cell collection center network as well as other related activities, in partial consideration for which the physician is to receive a one-time payment
of 10,000 shares of Common Stock under the 2003 EPP, which shares were issued as of February 2009. These shares had a value of $8,000. The issuance of
Common Stock resulted in charges to operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009 of $0 and $8,000, respectively.

In March 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant, pursuant to which this consultant was retained to provide additional financial market
related services for a three month period. In partial consideration for providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an
aggregate of 25,000 shares of restricted Common Stock, with a value of $17,250, to vest as to one-third of the shares at the end of each monthly period during the
term. The issuance of such securities was approved by the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009. Based on these vesting terms, the Company
has recognized $0 and $17,250 as an operating expense in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, respectively. This consultant was also issued a
five year warrant to purchase 25,000 shares of restricted Common Stock at a per share exercise price of $1.00, with a value of $16,867. (See Warrants below).
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In April 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant to provide financial market related services to the Company. In partial consideration for
providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 20,000 shares of Common Stock, with a value of $19,800.
The issuance of such securities was approved by the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009. The Company has recognized $0 and $19,800 as an
operating expense in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, respectively.

In April 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant to provide support services in connection with the Merger to the Company. In partial
consideration for providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 10,000 shares of Common Stock, with a
value of $11,800. The issuance of such securities was approved by the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009. The Company has recognized $0
and $11,800 as an operating expense in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, respectively.

In May 2009, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved awards under a Board of Directors Compensation Plan to members of the Board
acting in their capacity as Board members and to the Board Secretary, which included the issuance of options under the Company’s newly adopted 2009 Equity
Compensation Plan (the “2009 Equity Plan”) and the authorization for the Chairs of the Board and Board Committees to be issued for each Chair they hold, either
$25,000 or 25,000 shares of fully vested Common Stock under the 2009 Equity Plan. Accordingly, an aggregate of $50,000 was paid and 50,000 shares of
Common Stock were awarded. The Common Stock issued had a value of $97,500, and $0 and $97,500 was charged to operations during the three months and nine
months ended September 30, 2009, respectively.

In May 2009, the Company entered into a one month agreement with a consultant to provide consulting services in the area of pharmaceutical research and the
development of strategic transactions. In partial consideration for providing services under this agreement, the Company issued to the consultant 6,250 shares of
Common Stock. The Common Stock issued had a value of $11,876, and $0 and $11,876 was charged to operations during the three months and nine months ended
September 30, 2009, respectively. The consultant joined the Company as its Vice President, Drug Development and Regulatory Affairs in July 20009.

In July 2009, the Company granted under its 2009 Equity Plan, an aggregate of 525,000 shares of Common Stock to two executive officers of the Company. Robin
Smith, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, received 500,000 shares of Common Stock with a value of $855,000; 300,000 shares vested immediately and
200,000 will vest upon achievement of a business milestone; $513,000 was charged to operations during the three months and nine months ended September 30,
2009. Catherine Vaczy, the Company’s Vice President and General Counsel, received 25,000 shares of Common Stock with a value of $42,750, which vested
immediately, in connection with an extension of her employment agreement: $42,750 was charged to operations during the three months and nine months ended
September 30, 2009.

In August 2009, the Company entered into a two year Consulting Agreement with the Chairman of its Scientific Advisory Board. In partial consideration for
providing services under this Agreement, the Company issued to this advisor 50,000 shares of Common Stock under the 2009 Equity Plan. The Common Stock
issued had a value of $94,500, and resulted in a charge to operations of $94,500 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009.

In August 2009, the Company entered into a two and one-half month agreement with a consultant to provide web-based and other corporate promotional services to
the Company. In partial consideration for providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 8,000 restricted
shares of Common Stock, with a value of $14,960. The issuance of such securities was approved by the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in September
2009. The Company has recognized $14,960 as an operating expense in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009.
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Warrants:

The Company has issued common stock purchase warrants from time to time to investors in private placements, certain vendors, underwriters, and directors and
officers of the Company. A total of 18,196,780 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance upon exercise of outstanding warrants as of September 30, 2009
at prices ranging from $.50 to $8.00 and expiring through June 2014.

In February 2009, the Company issued to a consultant a five year warrant to purchase 5,000 shares of Common Stock at a purchase price of $1.40 per share, with a
value of $3,338. This warrant was issued in consideration of services rendered after the expiration of an October 2007 consulting agreement with the Company
pursuant to which this consultant was engaged to create marketing materials for our sales and marketing staff. The issuance of this warrant was approved by the
NYSE Amex and vested on issuance.

In March 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant to provide financial market related services for a three month period beginning March
2009. As partial consideration for providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant a five year warrant to purchase 25,000
shares of restricted Common Stock at a per share exercise price of $1.00, with a value of $16,867, vesting in its entirety at the end of the term. The issuance of
such securities was approved by the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009. The Company recognized $0 and $16,867 as an operating expense
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009, respectively.

In the Company’s August 2007 public offering, units were issued comprised of shares of the Company’s Common Stock, and Class A warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 635,000 shares of Common Stock. The Company also issued to its underwriter group warrants (the “Underwriter Warrants”) to purchase an aggregate
of 95,250 shares of Common Stock. The Class A Warrants were issued pursuant to the terms of a Restated Warrant Agreement made as of August 14, 2007
between the Company and the Class A Warrant agent. The Underwriter Warrants were issued individually to each member of the underwriting group. The
Underwriter Warrants had a higher exercise price ($6.50) than that of the Class A Warrants, and unlike the Class A Warrants, could not be exercised for a period of
one year from the date of issuance and contained provisions for cashless exercise. In September, 2008 the Company made the determination that certain of the
Underwriter Warrants totaling 86,865 shares of Common Stock, should be accounted for as a derivative liability and reported on our balance sheet as such. Upon
the closing of our August 2007 public offering the fair value and thus the derivative liability value of these certain Underwriter Warrants was $195,551. At
December 31, 2008 the derivative liability value associated with these certain Underwriter Warrants was $0 and at September 30, 2009 the derivative liability value
of these Underwriter Warrants was $ 41,143 and has been reflected as an accrued liability on our balance sheet. During the three months ended September 30, 2009
the Company recognized a credit to operating expense of $(1,749) and for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 an operating expense of $41,143.

In the April and June 2009 Private Placements (described in Note 5 - Redeemable Preferred Stock, above), as part of the Series D Units issued at $12.50 per unit,
the Company issued 8,800,000 Series D Warrants, and 4,002,800 Series D Warrants, respectively, to investors, each to purchase one share of Common Stock. The
Company also issued 129,712 Series D Warrants to selling agents that facilitated the June 2009 Private Placement. The Series D Warrants have a per share
exercise price equal to $2.50 and are callable by the Company if the Common Stock trades at a price equal to not less than $3.50 for a specified period of

time. Subject to the affirmative vote of the Company’s shareholders and the rules of the NYSE Amex, the Series D Warrants are exercisable for a period of five
years. The exercisability of all 12,932,512 Series D Warrants was submitted for stockholder approval at the NeoStem Special Meeting of Stockholders held on
October 29, 2009, was approved and the Series D Warrants became exercisable through October 2014. The combined net proceeds from the two private
placements were $15,679,220. Since the April and June 2009 Private Placements represent a combination of equities we are required to account for the value of all
equity securities associated with these private placements and assign a portion of the net proceeds received to each equity instrument. We apportioned and assigned
the net proceeds of the two private placements as follows: the value assigned to the Series D Stock was $7,685,768, which includes the contingent value of the
beneficial conversion to common stock of $6,618,000, and the value assigned to the Series D Warrants was $7,983,452.

On May 1, 2009, the Company entered into a three year consulting agreement effective March 3, 2009 (the “Effective Date”) whereby the consultant would provide
to the Company consulting services in the area of stem cell therapy in orthopedics for the development of business in Asia. Pursuant to this agreement, as partial
compensation for such services, the Company agreed to issue to this consultant a warrant to purchase up to an aggregate of 24,000 shares of Common Stock at an
exercise price of $0.50 (the closing price of the Common Stock on the Effective Date) which shall vest and become exercisable as to one-third of such shares on
each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the Effective Date. The value of such warrants is approximately $27,163. The issuance of such securities was
approved by the NYSE Amex. The Company has recognized $3,773 as an operating expense in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2009.
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Warrant activity is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Number of Exercise Term Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price Price (years) Value
Balance December 31, 2008 5,322,333 $ 0.50-$8.00 $ 3.66
Granted 12,986,512 2.49
Exercised -
Expired (112,065) 8.43
Cancelled -
Balance September 30, 2009 18,196,780 $ 0.50-$8.00 ¢ 2.80 4.28 1,170,432
Weighted Average
Number Remaining Number
Outstanding Contractual Life Exercisable
Exercise Price September 30, 2009 (years) September 30, 2009

$ 0.50t0 $ 3.02 16,252,221 4.44 3,254,047
$ 3.02t0 $ 5.27 183,750 2.42 183,750
$ 5.27to $ 7.51 802,761 2.93 802,761
$ 751t0 $ 8.00 958,048 3.09 958,048

18,196,780 4.28 5,198,606

See Note 10, Subsequent Events, for information on a proposal submitted to NeoStem stockholders at the NeoStem Special Meeting of Stockholders held on
October 29, 2009, to allow privately issued warrants (warrants issued other than to the public or the underwriters in NeoStem’s August 2007 public offering) with
exercise prices ranging from $4.00 to $8.00 to be repriced to a range of approximately $3.82 to $6.81. Such proposal was approved, and warrants to purchase
approximately 1,203,890 shares of Common Stock were so repriced effective on October 30, 2009, the date of closing of the Merger.

Options:

The Company’s 2003 Equity Participation Plan (the “2003 Equity Plan”) and 2009 Equity Compensation Plan (the “2009 Equity Plan”) permit the grant of share

options and shares to its employees, directors, consultants and advisors for up to an aggregate of 6,300,000 shares of Common Stock as stock-based

compensation. All stock options under the 2003 Equity Plan and the 2009 Equity Plan are generally granted at the fair market value of the Common Stock at the
grant date. Stock options vest either on the date of grant, ratably over a period determined at time of grant, or upon the accomplishment of specified business
milestones, and generally expire 10 years from the grant date.

On May 8, 2009, the stockholders of the Company at its annual meeting of stockholders adopted the 2009 Equity Plan, which previously had been approved by the
Board of Directors subject to stockholder approval on April 9, 2009. The 2009 Equity Plan makes up to 3,800,000 shares of Common Stock of the Company
available for issuance to employees, consultants, advisors and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to incentive or non-statutory stock options,
restricted and unrestricted stock awards and stock appreciation rights.

The 2003 Equity Plan and the 2009 Equity Plan are sometimes collectively referred to as the Company’s “U.S. Equity Plan.”
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Effective January 1, 2006, the Company’s U.S. Equity Plan has been accounted for in accordance with the recognition and measurement provisions of ASC 718-
10, 718-20 and 505-50. ASC 718-10, 718-20 and 505-50 require compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions, including employee stock
options, to be recognized in the financial statements. In addition, the Company adheres to the guidance set forth within Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC") Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 107, which provides the Staff's views regarding the interaction between ASC 718-10, 718-20 and 505-50 and
certain SEC rules and regulations and provides interpretations with respect to the valuation of share-based payments for public companies.

The Company's results included share-based compensation expense of $1,368,179 and $ 323,424 for the three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008,
respectively and $ 2,766,566 and $ 1,525,649 for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Such amounts have been included in the
consolidated statements of operations within general and administrative expenses.

Stock option compensation expense is the estimated fair value of options granted amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire
portion of the award and those options that vested upon the accomplishment of business milestones. Options vesting on the accomplishment of business milestones
will not be recognized for compensation purposes until such milestones are accomplished. At September 30, 2009 there were options to purchase 275,000 shares
outstanding that will vest on the accomplishment of certain business milestones.

The weighted average estimated fair value of stock options granted in the three months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 were $1.77 and $ 1.00, respectively
and for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008 the weighted average estimated fair value of stock options granted were $ 1.83 and $ 1.40
respectively. The fair value of options at the date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. During the nine months ended September
30, 2009 and the years ended 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company took into consideration the guidance under ASC 718-10 and SAB No. 107 when reviewing and
updating assumptions. The expected volatility is based upon historical volatility of our stock and other contributing factors. The expected term is based upon
observation of actual time elapsed between date of grant and exercise of options for all employees. Previously such assumptions were determined based on
historical data.

The range of assumptions made in calculating the fair values of options are as follows:

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Expected term (in years) 10 10 10 10
Expected volatility 187% to 197% 119% to 158% 187% to 217% 100% to 158%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 3.33% to 3.66% 3.64% to 4.09% 3.33% to 3.81% 3.64% to 4.19%

Stock option activity under the US Equity Plan is as follows:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Range of Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares (1) Exercise Price Exercise Price Term Value
Balance December 31, 2008 1,725,300 $ 0.71-$25.00 $ 3.96
Granted 2,920,000 1.83
Exercised -
Expired (2,000) .94
Cancelled (10,000) 7.00
Balance September 30, 2009 4,633,300 $ 0.71-$25.00 ¢ 2.62 570 g 503,700
Vested and Exercisable at September 30, 2009 2,718,300 $ 3.01 $ 300,285

(1) — All options are exercisable for a period of ten years.
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Weighted

Average
Number Remaining Number
Outstanding Contractual Life Exercisable
Exercise Price September 30, 2009 (years) September 30, 2009

$ 0.71to $ 4.17 3,742,000 9.44 1,992,000
$ 417t0 $ 7.63 800,200 7.35 639,200
$ 7.63t0 $ 11.08 50,000 6.20 46,000
$ 11.08t0 $ 14.54 3,000 4.42 3,000
$ 14.54t0 $ 25.00 38,100 5.77 38,100
4,633,300 2,718,300

Options are usually granted at an exercise price at least equal to the fair value of the Common Stock at the grant date and may be granted to employees, directors,
consultants and advisors of the Company.

As of September 30, 2009, there was approximately $3,679,418 of total unrecognized compensation costs related to unvested stock option awards of which
$1,828,748 of unrecognized compensation expense is related to stock options that vest over a weighted average life of 5 years. The balance of $1,850,669 of
unrecognized compensation costs is related to stock options that vest based on the accomplishment of business milestones.

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Options Value
Non-Vested at December 31, 2008 435250 $ 2.90
Issued 2,920,000 1.82
Expired (2,000) 7.00
Canceled (10,000) .93
Vested (1,428,250) 1.83
Exercised -
Non-Vested at September 30, 2009 1,915,000 ¢ 2.07
The total value of shares vested during the nine months ended September 30, 2009 was $ 2,766,566.
The number of remaining shares authorized to be issued for the U.S. Equity Plan is as follows
Shares authorized for Issuance under the 2003 Equity Plan 2,500,000
Shares authorized for Issuance under the 2009 Equity Plan 3,800,000
Options Outstanding (4,633,300)
Common Stock Issued (1,414,950)
Options Exercised (2,500)
Remaining shares authorized to be issued as of September 30, 2009 248,250

See Note 10, Subsequent Events, for information on proposals submitted for stockholder approval at the NeoStem Special Meeting of Shareholders held on October
29, 2009, which were approved and authorized the following: (i) an amendment to the 2003 Equity Plan which would allow options issued thereunder to be
repriced to the greater of $0.80 and fair market value on the date of closing of the Merger and (ii) a proposed increase to the 2009 Equity Plan to increase the
number of shares available for issuance thereunder from 3,800,000 to 9,750,000. Pursuant thereto, (i) options issued under the 2003 Plan to purchase an aggregate
of 754,250 shares of Common Stock with exercise prices ranging from $2.39 to $25.00, were repriced to $1.90 (the fair market value on the date of grant, which
was the closing price of a share of Common Stock on the NYSE Amex on October 30, 2009, the date of closing of the Merger), and (ii) the number of shares
available for issuance under the 2009 Equity Plan was increased to 9,750,000, and certain stock and option grants to NeoStem executive officers, employees,
consultants and advisors were effective either upon the approval of the increase in the 2009 Plan or closing of the Merger.
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Note 7 - Segment Information

Historically, the Company’s operations have been conducted in only one geographical segment and since March 31, 2007 the Company has realized revenue only
from the banking of adult autologous stem cells. In September, 2009 the Company established NeoStem (China), Inc. (“NeoStem China” or the “WFOE”) as a
wholly foreign owned subsidiary of NeoStem. The WFOE is domiciled in Qingdao and under its scope of business approved by the Chinese regulatory authorities,
the WFOE may engage in the research & development, transfer and technological consultation service of bio-technology, regenerative medical technology and anti-
aging technology (excluding the development or application of human stem cell, gene diagnosis and treatment technologies); consultation of economic information;
import, export and wholesaling of machinery and equipments (the import and export do not involve the goods specifically stipulated in/by state-operated trade,
import & export quota license, export quota bidding, export permit, etc.). In furtherance of complying with PRC’s foreign investment prohibition on stem cell
research and development, clinical trials and related activities, we conduct our current business in the PRC via two domestic variable interest entities. To date
operations in China have been limited. Our segment data is as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues earned from external customers:
United States $ 85,067 $ 25248 $ 157,709 $ 49,469
China - - - -
Income/(loss) from operations:
United States $ (6,084,059) $ (1,921,714) $ (11,745941) $  (6,810,676)
China $  (1,539,294) - $  (2,687,747) -

Note 8 - Related Party Transactions

In order to move forward certain research and development activities, strategic relationships in various clinical and therapeutic areas as well as to support activities
related to the Company’s proposed Merger and Share Exchange transactions, other initiatives in China as well as other ongoing obligations of the Company, on
February 25, 2009 and March 6, 2009, respectively, the Company issued promissory notes to RimAsia Capital Partners , L. P. (“RimAsia”), a principal stockholder
of the Company, in the principal amounts of $400,000 and $750,000, respectively. The notes bore interest at the rate of 10% per annum and were due and payable
on October 31, 2009, except that all principal and accrued interest on the Notes was immediately due and payable in the event the Company raised over $10 million
in equity financing prior to October 31, 2009. The notes contained standard events of default and in the event of a default that was not subsequently cured or
waived, the interest rate would increase to a rate of 15% per annum and, at the option of RimAsia and upon notice, the entire unpaid principal balance together with
all accrued interest thereon would be immediately due and payable. The notes or any portion thereof could be prepaid at any time and from time to time at the
discretion of the Company without premium or penalty. On April 9, 2009 these notes and the related accrued interest were repaid from the proceeds of the April
2009 Private Placement. In addition, April 9, 2009 NeoStem paid RimAsia $472,559 for reimbursement of funds advanced by RimAsia in connection with
NeoStem’s expansion activities in China.

In order to accelerate the establishment of Qingdao Niao for research and development purposes in the PRC, in April 2009 Suzhou Erye Pharmaceuticals Company
Ltd. (“Erye”) advanced in Renminbi the U.S. dollar equivalent of $176,000 to the shareholder of Qingdao Niao on our behalf. In May 2009 we repaid the amount
of $176,000 to Erye. Erye is owned 51% by CBH (with which we entered into the Merger Agreement in November 2008 and consummated the Merger on October
30, 2009) and 49% by Erye Economy and Trading Co. Ltd (of which Fullbright Finance Limited, a beneficial holder of more than five percent of the Company’s
stock, is a wholly-owned subsidiary).

On April 30, 2009 the Company entered into a License and Referral Agreement with Promethean Corporation (“Promethean”) through its subsidiary Ceres Living,
Inc. (“Ceres”) to use certain Company marks and publications in connection with certain sales and marketing activities relating to its nutritional supplement known
as AIO Premium Cellular (the “Product”); and in connection with the license, Ceres will pay to the Company or the Stem for Life Foundation specified

fees for each unit of the Product sold; and Ceres shall engage in a referral service with respect to the Company’s adult stem cell collection and storage activities.
Ceres will receive a specified fee from the Company for each client referred who completes and pays for a stem cell collection. The term of the agreement is three
years with each party having the right to renew annually, thereafter. The CEO of Promethean is in an exclusive relationship with the CEO of the Company. The
Company has earned $3,700 in royalties in connection with this agreement.

As part of the stem cell initiatives undertaken by NeoStem, on June 15, 2009, NeoStem signed a ten-year, exclusive, royalty bearing agreement with Enhance
BioMedical Holdings Limited (“Enhance”) to provide Enhance with the training, technical, and other assistance required for Enhance to offer stem cell based
therapies in Taiwan, Shanghai, and five other provinces in eastern China including Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Fujian, Anhui and Jiangxi. This agreement also gives
NeoStem the option to acquire up to a 20% fully diluted equity interest in Enhance for a period of five years. NeoStem will receive certain milestone payments as
well as be entitled to a stated royalty on the revenues derived from Enhance’s offering these stem cell based therapies. Enhance was an investor in the April 2009
Private Placement, pursuant to which it purchased $5 million of Series D Units, and thus acquired 400,000 shares of Series D Stock (which converted into
4,000,000 shares of Common Stock upon stockholder approval on October 29, 2009) and 4,000,000 Series D Warrants, each to purchase one share of Common
Stock at an exercise price of $2.50 per share (which became exercisable upon stockholder approval on October 29, 2009).
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Note 9 — Commitments

The Company has entered into an agreement for the lease of executive office space from SLG Graybar Sublease LL.C (the “Landlord”) at Suite 450, 420 Lexington
Avenue, New York, with a lease term effective April 1, 2009 through June 30, 2013 (the “Lease”). Rental, storage and utility payments are currently in the
aggregate approximate monthly amount of $20,600. To help defray the cost of the Lease, the Company has licensed to third parties the right to occupy certain of
the offices in Suite 450 and use certain business services. Such license payments currently total approximately $11,360 per month and the license agreements are
for periods of one year or less. The CEO of one such licensee, Promethean Corporation, is in an exclusive relationship with the Company’s CEO. The Lease was
entered into pursuant to an assignment and assumption of the original lease from the original lessor thereof, DCI Master LDC (the lead investor in a private
placement by the Company in June 2006) and affiliates of DCI Master LDC and Duncan Capital Group LLC (a former financial advisor to and an investor in the
Company), for which original lease a principal of such entities acted as guarantor (the “Guarantor”), a consent to such assignment from the Landlord and a lease
modification agreement between the Company and the Landlord, such documents being dated April 13, 2009 with effective delivery April 17, 2009. The Company
was credited with an amount remaining as a security deposit with the Landlord from such original lessor (the “Security Deposit Credit”), was required to deposit an
additional amount with the Landlord to replenish the original amount of security for the Lease and pay an amount equal to the Security Deposit Credit to the
Guarantor of the original lease. The total payments made by the Company for such security deposit and payment of the Security Deposit Credit to the Guarantor
were in the approximate aggregate amount of $157,100. Richard Berman, a director of the Company, utilizes an office in Suite 450 in his capacity as a member of
the Company’s Audit Committee and Nominating Committee and Chairman of the Company’s Compensation Committee, and for other business purposes.

In May 2009, Qingdao Niao, the Chinese domestic company controlled by the WOFE, NeoStem China, through various business arrangements, entered into leases
with Beijing Zhong-guan-cun Life Science Park Development Corp., Ltd. pursuant to which Qingdao Niao is leasing laboratory, office and storage space in Beijing
for the aggregate monthly amount of approximately $23,000. Lease payments are due quarterly in advance, and upon entering into the lease a three month security
deposit was required in addition to the first quarterly payment. The term of the leases is for approximately three years.

As of July 1, 2009, the Company entered into an Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of November 2, 2009 with China
Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc. (“CBH”), China Biopharmaceuticals Corp., CBH’s wholly-owned subsidiary (“CBC”) and CBH Acquisition LL.C, NeoStem’s
wholly-owned subsidiary. Pursuant to the terms of the Amendment, the following provisions were then in effect:

The number of shares of NeoStem Common Stock to be issued to the CBH Common Stockholders was reduced to an aggregate of 7,150,000 shares
(such that the Exchange Ratio in the Merger will be 0.19255), with no additional shares being escrowed;

The number of shares to be issued to RimAsia Capital Partners, L.P. ("RimAsia") will be increased to 6,458,009 shares of Common Stock and
8,177,512 shares of NeoStem Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, each with a liquidation preference of $1.125 and convertible to shares of
NeoStem Common Stock at an initial conversion price of $.90 (with the Class B warrants to be issued to RimAsia eliminated), in exchange for
certain advances made or to be made by RimAsia and described below;

125,000 shares of NeoStem Common Stock will be issued to Erye Economy and Trading Co. Ltd. (“EET”) (the 49% holder of Suzhou Erye
Pharmaceuticals Company Ltd. (“Erye”), 51% of which is owned by CBH and which 51% will be acquired by NeoStem in the Merger) or its
designee for assistance in effectuating the Merger;

The number of shares to be issued to Steven E. Globus and Chris Mao, respectively a director and CEO of CBH, in exchange for satisfaction of
loans made by them to CBH, shall be reduced to an aggregate of approximately 17,158 shares;

Conditions to closing were amended to (a) add a condition that in order to satisfy its obligations under a memorandum of understanding with EET,
CBH shall have caused Erye to transfer the land and building for its principal manufacturing facility to EET or its affiliate for a sum to be agreed
upon, and for EET or its affiliate to lease that facility back to Erye at a nominal fee for a term through construction of Erye's new manufacturing
facility and until such date as Erye’s new facility is completed and fully operational (which transaction will remove a significant asset from the
CBH balance sheet) and (b) provide that instead of a spinoff of the CBC shares as a liquidating distribution to the shareholders of CBH, such shares
may be privately sold or transferred to a liquidating trust;

Eric Wei (a principal of RimAsia) will be added to the current NeoStem Board of Directors after the Merger is effected, and thereafter, Shi
Mingsheng (a principal of EET and Fullbright and a current director of CBH) will also be added after receipt of PRC approvals;
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Privately issued NeoStem warrants outstanding immediately prior to the closing of the Merger shall be amended to reduce their exercise price if the
current exercise price is $4.00 and above;

The Compensation Committee of NeoStem’s Board of Directors may in lieu of lowering the exercise price of outstanding options to $.80 as
provided in the original merger agreement, lower the exercise price to a price which is greater than $.80 (but not less than fair market value) and
provide alternative cash or equity consideration to eligible NeoStem employees, directors, advisors and consultants;

The outside date for completion of the Merger is extended to October 31, 2009.

As of August 27, 2009, the Company, CBH and Subco entered into Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November 2,
2008, as amended by Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 1, 2009 (as amended, the “Agreement and Plan of Merger”). Capitalized terms used herein and not
defined shall have the meanings given those terms in the Agreement and Plan of Merger. Pursuant to the terms of Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement and Plan of
Merger, the following provisions were then in effect:

The Exchange Ratio was amended to equal the quotient of 7,150,000 shares divided by the sum of (x) the number of shares of CBH stock
outstanding as of the Effective Time and (y) the number of shares of CBH common stock issuable upon exercise of in-the-money warrants of CBH immediately
prior to the Effective Time, subject to adjustment as set forth in the Agreement and Plan of Merger. As of the date of Amendment No. 2, the Exchange Ratio was
0.1921665.

The exchange offer with respect to the outstanding CBH Common Stock Purchase Warrants was eliminated. Accordingly, Preliminary Statement
E(3) and Exhibit B, the closing condition set forth in Section 6.2.20 of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, and all references to the Series C Warrants therein, were
deleted. Section 2.4 of the Agreement and Plan of Merger was amended to provide that at the Effective Time, each holder of a CBH Common Stock Purchase
Warrant (other than RimAsia) would receive, in aggregate, in exchange for his or her CBH Common Stock Purchase Warrants the rights under those CBH
Common Stock Purchase Warrants.

The Agreement and Plan of Merger contemplates that as a condition of Closing, certain approvals from PRC regulatory authorities shall have been
obtained prior to Closing, including approvals with respect to the Merger, and the terms of the Amended and Restated Erye Joint Venture Agreement, the Erye
Articles of Incorporation and related organizational documents. It also contemplates certain assurances from PRC Governmental Authorities. In Amendment No.
2, CBH agreed to cause Erye to use reasonable commercial efforts to obtain such approvals prior to the Closing. Contrary to Amendment No. 1, however, the
parties will not enter into an escrow agreement, and there will be no provision such that the consideration to be paid or issued by NeoStem in connection with the
Merger is held in escrow, subject to a right of NeoStem to receive back all such consideration and rescind the Merger if any such PRC regulatory approvals are not
obtained. Any references to a possible escrow arrangement were deleted. Mr. Shi and Madame Jian shall use reasonable efforts to expedite the receipt of all PRC
approvals and shall be paid an aggregate of 203,338 shares of NeoStem Common Stock when all PRC approvals are received (for clarification this replaced the
provision previously included in Amendment No. 1).

As of July 1, 2009, NeoStem, CBH, CBC and RimAsia, which is a significant investor in the Company and CBH, entered into a Funding Agreement pursuant to
which it was agreed that RimAsia would supply additional funding to both NeoStem and CBH in an amount up to $1.6 million (including, as of September 30,
2009, approximately $1 million advanced on behalf of NeoStem and approximately $427,000 advanced on behalf of CBH), which amount would be deemed
settled upon its receipt of the increased amount of NeoStem securities to be received by RimAsia as part of the Merger consideration, which increase was agreed to
in the July amendment to the Merger Agreement. If less than $1.6 million had been advanced at that time, the difference would be paid to NeoStem at the closing
of the Merger. In the event the Merger had not received shareholder approval by October 31, 2009, NeoStem would have been required to repay RimAsia all
payments incurred or made by RimAsia on behalf of NeoStem. The Merger and related transactions were presented for stockholder approval at a Special Meeting
of Stockholders held on October 29, 2009 and were approved. As of October 29, 2009 approximately $1,070,000 had been advanced on behalf of NeoStem and
approximately $846,000 had been advanced on behalf of CBH, by RimAsia. The amount of funds advanced by RimAsia has exceeded the upper limit of $1.6
million resulting in additional funds due RimAsia in the amount of approximately $316,000, which will be paid to RimAsia from cash due CBH being disbursed in
connection with the closing of the Merger.
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In July 2009, the WOFE entered into a cooperation agreement with NeoStem’s PRC consultant, Shandong Life and Science Institute, a not-for-profit organization
under PRC law, to organize and convene various clinical trials. This agreement requires funding by the WOFE in the amount of RMB 5,000,000 (approximately
$730,000).

In July 20009, in connection with NeoStem’s determination to terminate its proposed Share Exchange transaction in favor of independently building out its stem cell
business in China, NeoStem expanded its relationship with Shandong Life Science and Technology Research Institute (“SLSI”), of which Dr. Cai Jianqgian of the
Shandong Provincial Association of Chinese Medicine is President, to provide for commitments from SLSI in addition to those agreed to effective April 23, 2009
(described below). In return, NeoStem agreed to grant to SLSI an additional 100,000 shares under its 2009 Non-U.S. Based Equity Plan (the “2009 Non-U.S.
Plan”), subject to approval of the 2009 Non-U.S. Plan at the Company’s Special Meeting of Shareholders. The 2009 Non-U.S. Plan was approved at the Special
Meeting. Previously, effective April 23, 2009, the Company had entered into a Consulting Agreement with SLSI. Through SLSI, Dr. Cai Jiangian will provide
consulting services to NeoStem in the area of business development, strategic planning and government affairs in the healthcare industry in the PRC, including the
introduction of NeoStem to hospitals and medical practices within the PRC to advance NeoStem’s strategic relationships. In return, NeoStem will pay SLSI an
annual fee of $100,000 and issue SLSI an aggregate of 250,000 options under the NeoStem, Inc. 2009 Non-U.S. Plan, also subject to the approval of the 2009 Non-
U.S. Plan at the Special Meeting, which was approved, to become exercisable over approximately a two year period. Dr. Cai Jiangian became acquainted with the
Company through her son Chris Peng Mao, former CEO of CBH.

On July 6, 2009, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Alan Harris, M.D., Ph.D. (the “Employment Agreement”), pursuant to which Dr. Harris
will serve as the Company’s Vice President of Drug Development and Regulatory Affairs for a period of three years from July 6, 2009 (the “Commencement
Date”), unless such term is earlier terminated by Dr. Harris or the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Employment Agreement. In this capacity, Dr.
Harris will be responsible for overseeing the research, development and regulatory activities of the Company; overseeing the regulatory activities of the Company;
assisting in the preparation and submission of grant applications for funding; advancing the Company’s intellectual property portfolio, as well as other activities. In
consideration for his services to the Company, Dr. Harris shall receive a fixed annual salary of $240,000 and shall be entitled to participate in the Company’s
compensation and employee benefit plans and programs.

On the Commencement Date, Dr. Harris was granted an option to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock under the Company’s 2009 Equity
Plan at an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Common Stock on the date of grant. The option vests as to 50,000 shares immediately and as to the
remaining 100,000 shares on the one year anniversary of the Commencement Date. Upon (i) shareholder approval of the proposal to expand the option pool
available under the 2009 Equity Plan (approved at the Special Meeting of Shareholders on October 29, 2009) and (ii) the consummation of the Merger with CBH
(October 30, 2009) , Dr. Harris shall be granted an option to purchase 200,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price equal to the closing price of the
Common Stock on the date of grant. This option shall vest as to 100,000 shares on the second anniversary of the Commencement Date and as to the remaining
100,000 shares on the third anniversary of the Commencement Date. The options granted to Dr. Harris shall be subject to written option grant agreements. In the
event Dr. Harris is terminated other than for Cause (as defined in the Employment Agreement) within thirty days of a vesting date, the vesting of the applicable
shares of Common Stock shall accelerate.

Additionally, upon the achievement of certain Milestones as set forth in the Employment Agreement, Dr. Harris shall receive a cash bonus of $15,000, payable
within thirty days of the achievement of a Milestone. Dr. Harris shall also receive (i) reimbursement of $1,500 per month for health benefits; (ii) a $1,000 per
month car allowance; and (iii) reimbursement for all reasonable travel and other reasonable expenses (in accordance with the Company’s policy) incurred by him in
connection with the performance of his duties and obligations under the Employment Agreement.

The Company may terminate Dr. Harris’ employment prior to the expiration of the three-year term immediately upon written notice to Dr. Harris. Dr. Harris may
terminate his employment with the Company upon sixty days prior written notice. If the Company terminates Dr. Harris’ employment other than for Cause (as
defined in the Employment Agreement), the Company shall pay Dr. Harris severance equal to two months of base salary, payable on Dr. Harris’ regular payroll
dates. Except as describe above, Dr. Harris’ options shall not vest beyond his termination date. No other payments shall be made, or benefits provided, to Dr.
Harris by the Company except as otherwise required by law. Dr. Harris previously executed a Confidentiality, Non-Compete and Inventions Assignment
Agreement pursuant to which Dr. Harris agreed to be bound by certain non-compete provisions and certain non-solicitation provisions during the term of his
employment with the Company.
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On July 8, 2009, pursuant to a letter agreement (the “Letter Agreement”) entered into with Catherine M. Vaczy, Esq., the Vice President and General Counsel the
Company, the Company reinstated and extended Ms. Vaczy’s employment agreement dated January 26, 2007, which employment agreement was amended on
January 9, 2008 and August 29, 2008 (the “Original Agreement”). The Letter Agreement was effective as of July 8, 2009 (the “Effective Date”) and continues for a
one year term (the “Term”). In consideration for Ms. Vaczy’s services during the Term, Ms. Vaczy shall receive a base salary of $182,500.

Upon the Effective Date, Ms. Vaczy shall receive (i) a stock award under the Company’s 2009 Equity Compensation Plan for 25,000 shares of Common Stock and
(ii) an option grant for 200,000 shares of Common Stock under the Company’s 2009 Equity Compensation Plan with an exercise price equal to the closing price of
the Common Stock on the date of grant, which option shall vest with respect to 100,000 shares on the Effective Date and with respect to the remaining 100,000
shares upon shareholder approval of the Company’s proposed merger with CBH (approved at the Special Meeting of Shareholders on October 29, 2009). Options
granted to Ms. Vaczy shall remain exercisable for a period of two years following her termination of employment with the Company. Additionally, upon
shareholder approval of (i) the proposal to expand the option pool available under the 2009 Equity Compensation Plan and (ii) the merger with CBH (both
approved at the Special Meeting of Shareholders on October 29, 2009), Ms. Vaczy shall be granted an option for 100,000 shares of Common Stock, which option
shall vest in full on the first anniversary of the Effective Date. Ms. Vaczy shall also be entitled to a $5,000 cash bonus upon the achievement of each of two stated
business milestones. Pursuant to the Letter Agreement, any severance payments to which Ms. Vaczy may become entitled under her Original Agreement shall be
based upon her then-current salary for a three-month period.

On July 29, 2009, the Company amended the terms of its employment agreement with its Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Robin Smith, to extend the term of Dr.
Smith’s employment to December 31, 2011 and subject to consummation of the proposed Merger with CBH (which occurred on October 30, 2009), awarded to Dr.
Smith a $275,000 cash bonus for 2009 and comparable minimum annual bonuses for 2010 and 2011.

Effective as of July 27, 2009, NeoStem (China), Inc., a wholly foreign owned subsidiary of the Company in China (the “WFOE”), entered into an employment
agreement with Peter Sun (the “Employment Agreement”), pursuant to which Mr. Sun will serve as the WFOE’s General Manager for a period of three years from
July 27, 2009 (the “Commencement Date”), unless such term is earlier terminated by Mr. Sun or the WFOE in accordance with the provisions of the Employment
Agreement. In this capacity, Mr. Sun will be responsible for overseeing the entire business, from the validation of WFOE’s business plan, to the execution of the
WFOE’s strategy. Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, in consideration for his services to the WFOE, Mr. Sun shall receive a fixed annual salary and a
monthly allowance to cover various expenses incurred by him in connection with the performance of his duties and obligations under the Employment
Agreement. He shall also be entitled to receive employee benefits as required by Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “Chinese Labor
Contract Law”). Upon the approval by the Company’s shareholders of its proposed Merger with CBH and the Company’s Non-U.S. Plan (both of which approved
at the Special Meeting of Shareholders on October 29, 2009), subject to the rules of the NYSE Amex and further subject to all the terms and conditions of the Non-
U.S. Plan, Mr. Sun shall be granted a stated warrant under the Non-U.S. Plan at an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Common Stock on the date of
grant, subject to approval of the Company’s Compensation Committee of Board which vests based on the achievement of certain milestones as set forth in the
Employment Agreement.

The Company or Mr. Sun may terminate this Employment Agreement according to certain provisions of Chinese Labor Contract Law. If Mr. Sun’s employment is
terminated due to causes set forth under Chinese Labor Contract Law, the Company shall pay Mr. Sun the severance based on the number of years he has worked
for the Company at the rate of one month’s wages for each full year worked. Mr. Sun has also executed a Confidentiality and Non-Compete Agreement pursuant to
which Mr. Sun agreed to be bound by certain non-compete provisions and certain non-solicitation provisions.
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As of August 31, 2009, the Company entered into a consulting agreement (the “Consulting Agreement”) with Wayne Marasco, M.D., Ph.D., the Chairman of the
Company’s Scientific Advisory Board, pursuant to which Dr. Marasco will serve as a scientific advisor to the Company for a period of two years from August 31,
2009 (the “Commencement Date”), unless such term is earlier terminated by Dr. Marasco or the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Consulting
Agreement. In consideration for his services to the Company, Dr. Marasco shall receive an annual fee of $185,000 payable in equal monthly installments.

On the Commencement Date, Dr. Marasco was issued 50,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock under the Company’s 2009 Equity Plan. Dr. Marasco was
also granted an option to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock under the Company’s 2009 Equity Plan at an exercise price equal to the
closing price of the Common Stock on the date of grant, vesting as to one-third of the shares on the Commencement Date and as to one-third of the shares on each
of the first and second anniversaries of the Commencement Date, provided, that on each vesting date Dr. Marasco continues to be providing services as a consultant
and shall otherwise be subject to all the terms of the 2009 Equity Plan, except if he is terminated without cause (as defined in the 2009 Equity Plan, “Cause”), all
such options shall vest immediately. Upon (i) shareholder approval of the proposal to expand the option pool available under the 2009 Equity Plan and (ii) the
consummation of the Merger with CBH (which occurred on October 30, 2009), Dr. Marasco shall be granted an option to purchase 150,000 shares of Common
Stock at an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Common Stock on the date of grant. This option shall vest as to one-third of the shares on the date of
grant and as to one-third of the shares on each of the first and second anniversaries of the date of grant. In the event Dr. Marasco is terminated without Cause, all
such options shall vest immediately. Dr. Marasco is eligible for additional cash and option grants under the Consulting Agreement and also remuneration for
consulting services outside the scope of the Consulting Agreement, and shall receive reimbursement of certain expenses.

Either party may terminate the Consulting Agreement upon 90 days prior written notice; provided, that in the event Dr. Marasco is terminated without Cause prior
to August 31, 2010, he shall receive a payment equal to one year’s fee, paid at the same rate as the fee would otherwise be paid under the Consulting Agreement.
Dr. Marasco previously executed a Confidentiality, Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement.

NeoStem, Inc. has entered into an agreement for the lease of space from Rivertech Associates II, LLC, c/o The Abbey Group (the “Landlord”) at 840 Memorial
Drive, Cambridge, Massachusetts with a lease term effective September 1, 2009 through August 31, 2012 (the “Lease”). The space will be used for general office,
research and development, and laboratory space (inclusive of an adult stem cell collection center). The base rent under the Lease is $283,848 for the first year,
$356,840 for the second year and $369,005 for the third year. In addition, the Company will be responsible for certain costs and charges specified in the Lease,
including utilities, operating expenses and real estate taxes. The security deposit is $84,141, which may be reduced to $56,094 if Company has not defaulted in the
performance of its obligations under the lease prior to the second lease year. To help defray the cost of the Lease, Company will share with Alnara Pharmaceutical
Inc. (“AP”) certain of the leased premises and AP will pay the Company $5,000 a month.

Note 10 - Subsequent Events
The following are the subsequent events that management believes materially effect the financial position or results of operations or are otherwise informative to

the reader of these financial statements from October 1, 2009 to November 4, 2009.
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Effective October 2, 2009 (the “Termination Date”), Mark Weinreb resigned as President of NeoStem. In connection with Mr. Weinreb’s resignation, NeoStem and
Mr. Weinreb entered into a Separation Agreement and General Release dated as of September 29, 2009 (the “Agreement”). Under the terms of the Agreement,
NeoStem will (i) continue to pay Mr. Weinreb’s regular salary of $17,500 per month through December 31, 2009; (ii) pay Mr. Weinreb a bonus of $32,500 ($7,500
of which was his standard quarterly bonus); and (iii) make COBRA payments for a period of one year on Mr. Weinreb’s behalf for himself and his family. All
unvested options to purchase NeoStem Common Stock shall be forfeited as of the Termination Date, except that options to purchase an aggregate of 20,000 shares
of common stock (half at an exercise price of $4.95 and the balance at $1.63) shall not be forfeited and shall vest in accordance with their terms upon the
completion of NeoStem’s Merger with CBH. All of Mr. Weinreb’s outstanding options issued under the NeoStem, Inc. 2003 Equity Participation Plan (the “2003
Plan”) will be repriced so that the exercise price is the greater of $0.80 or fair market value on the date of the repricing, if NeoStem’s stockholders approve a
Company repricing of options granted under the 2003 Plan and the NeoStem Board of Directors so (and at such time as it) reprices options issued under the 2003
Plan in that manner. The repricing was effected on October 30, 2009, and the exercise price was adjusted to $1.90 per share. All of Mr. Weinreb’s outstanding
options will be amended so that the period during which he may exercise a vested option ends on the earlier of: (i) the original expiration date of each such option;
(ii) the second anniversary of the Termination Date; and (iii) the date on which NeoStem may determine in good faith that Mr. Weinreb has violated the terms of a
previously-executed Employee Confidentiality, Invention Assignment and Non-Compete Agreement (the “Covenant Agreement”); provided that NeoStem agreed
that an option to purchase 100,000 shares at $1.95 issued under the NeoStem, Inc. 2009 Equity Compensation Plan (the “2009 Plan”) will remain exercisable for its
original ten year term unless (iii), above, is applicable. Mr. Weinreb remains subject to the terms of a November 2, 2008 Lock-Up and Voting Agreement which
provides that he may not sell any shares of common stock for a period of six months following the closing of the Merger; provided, that subject to the approval of
CBH, commencing December 1, 2009, Mr. Weinreb may sell up to 30,000 shares of common stock per calendar month in accordance with applicable securities
laws. The Agreement contains other customary terms and provisions, including mutual releases and non-disparagement provisions, as well as remedies for breaches
of the Agreement and the Covenant Agreement. The Agreement became effective on October 6, 2009.

As of October 2, 2009, NeoStem entered into indemnification agreements with its chief executive officer, chief financial officer, general counsel, certain other
employees and each of its directors pursuant to which NeoStem has agreed to indemnify such party to the full extent permitted by law, subject to certain exceptions,
if such party becomes subject to an action because such party is a director, officer, employee, agent or fiduciary of NeoStem.

Effective as of October 9, 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant who has previously provided services to the Company, pursuant to which
this consultant was retained to provide additional financial market related services for a two month period. In consideration for providing services under this
agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 25,000 shares of restricted Common Stock, to vest as to one-half of the shares at the end
of each monthly period during the term, and a five year warrant to purchase 25,000 shares of restricted Common Stock at a per share exercise price of $2.10 (with
certain cashless exercise provisions), to vest in its entirety at the end of the term. The issuance of such securities is subject to the approval of the NYSE Amex.

Effective as of October 9, 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a financial advisor who has previously provided services to the Company, pursuant to
which this advisor was retained to provide additional financial advisory services for a two month period. In consideration for providing services under this
agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 50,000 shares of restricted Common Stock, to vest as to one-half of the shares at the end
of each monthly period during the term, and a five year warrant to purchase 25,000 shares of restricted Common Stock at a per share exercise price of $2.10 (with
cashless exercise provisions), to vest in its entirety at the end of the term. The issuance of such securities is subject to the approval of the NYSE Amex.
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SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS HELD ON OCTOBER 29, 2009

On October 7, 2009, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) declared effective NeoStem’s Registration Statement on Form S-
4 filed with the Commission. The Registration Statement, including the joint proxy statement/prospectus contained therein, was used in connection with NeoStem's
acquisition by merger (the “Merger”) of China Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc. (“CBH”) into a wholly-owned subsidiary of NeoStem. The acquisition was
subject to customary closing conditions, including approval by the shareholders of each company which approval was obtained at meetings of shareholders held on
October 29, 2009. The Merger closed on October 30, 2009. In addition to approval of the issuance of securities in the Merger, several other proposals were
presented for consideration at the NeoStem meeting of shareholders (the “NeoStem Special Meeting”). Following is a list of all the proposals presented at the
NeoStem Special Meeting, all of which received the requisite shareholder approval:

1. To consider and vote upon the issuance of securities of NeoStem pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as
of November 2, 2008, as such agreement may be amended from time to time (the “Agreement and Plan of Merger”), by and among NeoStem, China
Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc. (“CBH”), CBH Acquisition LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of NeoStem (“Subco”), and China
Biopharmaceuticals Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBH, pursuant to which CBH will merge with and into Subco, with Subco as the surviving
entity (the “Merger”). (For more information, see below, and Note 9, Commitments, to the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements included
herein.) The Merger closed on October 30, 20009.

2. To consider and vote upon an amendment to NeoStem’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase the number of shares of preferred
stock, par value $0.01 per share, authorized for issuance from 5,000,000 shares to 20,000,000 shares (and a corresponding increase in NeoStem’s total
authorized shares from 505,000,000 to 520,000,000). This amendment was filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware upon the closing of the Merger.

3. To consider and vote upon the issuance of NeoStem Common Stock in order to permit the potential conversion of the 8,177,512 shares of Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock to be issued to RimAsia in the Merger into 9,086,124 shares of NeoStem Common Stock upon the election of the holders
thereof. The Series C Convertible Preferred Stock were issued to RimAsia upon the closing of the Merger.

4. To consider and vote upon the issuance of NeoStem Common Stock in order to permit (i) the potential exercise of up to 13,932,512 warrants (including
12,932,512 Series D warrants) and (ii) the automatic conversion of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock into 12,932,510 shares of NeoStem Common
Stock, together with the elimination of certain restrictions regarding certain warrant exercises and stock conversions. Upon shareholder approval, all
13,932,512 warrants became immediately fully exercisable and the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock automatically converted into an aggregate of
12,932,510 shares of NeoStem Common Stock.

5. To consider and vote upon an amendment to NeoStem’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of NeoStem
Common Stock at a ratio within the range of 1:2 to 1:5, as determined by the NeoStem Board of Directors, solely in the event it is deemed by the NeoStem
Board of Directors necessary for NeoStem to maintain its listing with the NYSE Amex or to list NeoStem Common Stock on any other exchange.

6. To consider and vote upon an amendment to the NeoStem, Inc. 2009 Equity Compensation Plan (the “2009 Plan”) to increase the number of shares of
NeoStem Common Stock authorized for issuance thereunder from 3,800,000 shares to 9,750,000 shares. Upon the approval of this amendment on October
29, 2009, options to purchase an aggregate of 1,360,000 shares of NeoStem Common Stock were granted to NeoStem employees, advisors and
consultants, of which 1,200,000 were granted to executive officers of NeoStem. Upon the closing of the Merger, certain additional stock and option grants
to NeoStem executive officers, employees, directors and advisors also became effective. See below.

7. To consider and vote upon the adoption of the NeoStem, Inc. 2009 Non-U.S. Based Equity Compensation Plan (the “2009 Non-U.S. Plan”) with respect to
the 4,700,000 shares of NeoStem Common Stock authorized for issuance thereunder. Upon the closing of the Merger and/or receipt of certain PRC

approvals, certain stock and warrant grants to non-U.S. personnel became effective. See below.
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8. To consider and vote upon an amendment to NeoStem’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to provide for the classification of the Board
of Directors into three classes and certain related provisions regarding the Board of Directors. This amendment was filed with the Secretary of State of
Delaware upon the closing of the Merger, pursuant to which the terms of Drew Bernstein, Eric Wei and Shi Mingsheng (at such time as he becomes a
director) will expire in 2010, the terms of Edward Geehr and Steven Myers will expire in 2011, and the terms of Richard Berman and Robin Smith will
expire in 2012.

9. To consider and vote upon (i) an amendment to NeoStem’s 2003 Equity Participation Plan (the “2003 Plan”) to grant the NeoStem Board of Directors or
an appropriate committee thereof the authority to reprice options, (ii) a one-time repricing of the exercise price of certain NeoStem options and warrants to
purchase shares of NeoStem Common Stock and (iii) giving the Board of Directors or an appropriate committee thereof discretion to issue certain cash or
equity awards in connection with the one-time repricing. Pursuant to this authority, effective upon the closing of the Merger, substantially all options
issued under the 2003 Equity Plan were eligible to be repriced to the greater of $0.80 and fair market value on the date of closing of the Merger, and the
compensation committee authorized certain discretionary grants. See below. Further, upon the closing of the Merger, privately issued warrants (warrants
issued other than to the public or the underwriters in NeoStem’s August 2007 public offering) with exercise prices ranging from $4.00 to $8.00 were
repriced to a range of approximately $3.82 to $6.81. See below.

MERGER AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

On October 30, 2009, China Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc. (“CBH”) merged with and into CBH Acquisition LLC (“Merger Sub”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of NeoStem, with Merger Sub as the surviving entity (the “Merger”) in accordance with the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated November 2, 2008,
as amended (“Merger Agreement”) by and between NeoStem, Merger Sub, CBH and China Biopharmaceuticals Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CBH
(“CBC”). As aresult of the Merger, NeoStem acquired CBH’s 51% ownership interest in Suzhou Erye Pharmaceuticals Company Ltd. (“Erye”), a Sino-foreign
joint venture with limited liability organized under the laws of the People’s Republic of China. Erye specializes in research and development, production and sales
of pharmaceutical products, as well as chemicals used in pharmaceutical products. Erye, which has been in business for more than 50 years, currently
manufactures over 100 drugs on seven Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) lines, including small molecule drugs. Suzhou Erye Economy and Trading Co. Ltd.
(“EET”) owns the remaining 49% ownership interest in Erye. Merger Sub and EET have negotiated a revised joint venture agreement, which, subject to approval
by the requisite PRC governmental authorities, will become effective.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, NeoStem issued an aggregate of 13,608,009 shares of Common Stock and 8,177,512 shares of Series C
Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for outstanding CBH securities. All of the shares of common stock of CBH issued and outstanding immediately prior to
the effective time of the Merger were converted into the right to receive, in the aggregate, 7,150,000 shares of common stock of NeoStem, or an exchange ratio of
0.1921665.

All of the shares of CBH Series B Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the merger (which shares were held by Rim Asia
Capital Partners L.P. (“RimAsia”)) were converted into the right to receive, in the aggregate, (i) 6,458,009 shares of NeoStem Common Stock and (ii) 8,177,512
shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock of NeoStem, each with a liquidation preference of $1.125 per share and initially convertible into 9,086,124 shares of
NeoStem Common Stock at an initial conversion price of $0.90 per share (the 6,458,009 shares of Common Stock and the 8,177,512 shares of Series C Convertible
Preferred Stock being included in the aggregate numbers set forth in the prior paragraph). In connection therewith, all outstanding warrants to purchase shares of
CBH Common Stock held by RimAsia immediately prior to the Effective Time were cancelled. Warrants to purchase shares of CBH Common Stock (other than
warrants held by RimAsia) were replaced with new NeoStem Class E warrants or were otherwise cancelled in accordance with the terms of such holder’s existing
warrant. Class E warrants to purchase an aggregate of 192,308 shares of NeoStem common stock at an exercise price of $6.50 per share and an aggregate of
1,410,883 shares of NeoStem common stock at an exercise price of $6.56 per share, are effectively outstanding as of October 30, 20009.
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NeoStem issued 9,532 shares of NeoStem Common Stock to Stephen Globus, a director of CBH, and 7,626 shares of NeoStem Common Stock to Chris Peng Mao,
the Chief Executive Officer of CBH, in exchange for the cancellation and the satisfaction in full of indebtedness in the aggregate principal amount of $90,000, plus
any and all accrued but unpaid interest thereon, and other obligations of CBH to Messrs. Globus and Mao.

For assistance in effecting the merger, 125,000 shares of NeoStem Common Stock were issued to Fullbright Finance Limited (“Fullbright”) as the designee of EET,
of which Fullbright is a wholly-owned subsidiary. In addition, an aggregate of 203,338 shares of NeoStem Common Stock will be issued to Fullbright as the
designee of Shi Mingsheng (the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Erye and a holder of approximately two-thirds of EET) and Madam Zhang Jian (General
Manager of Erye and a holder of approximately 10% of EET) in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger to assist in obtaining the receipt of
all applicable approvals of the People’s Republic of China. Further, Mr. Shi and Madam Zhang will receive an aggregate of 350,000 Merger Bonus (as defined
below) shares (175,000 each) after receipt of PRC approvals and the closing of the Merger.

Following consummation of the Merger, NeoStem now owns 51% of the ownership interests in Erye, and EET continues to own the remaining 49% ownership
interest. As noted above, Merger Sub and EET have negotiated a revised joint venture agreement, which, subject to approval by the requisite PRC governmental
authorities, will become effective. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Joint Venture Agreement, dividend distributions to EET and Merger Sub will be
made in proportion to their respective ownership interests in Erye; provided, however, that for the three-year period commencing on the first day of the first fiscal
quarter after the Joint Venture Agreement becomes effective, (i) 49% of undistributed profits (after tax) will be distributed to EET and lent back to Erye by EET for
use by Erye in connection with the construction of a new plant for Erye; (ii) 45% of the net profit (after tax) will be provided to Erye as part of the new plant
construction fund, which will be characterized as paid-in capital for Merger Sub’s 51% interest in Erye; and (iii) 6% of the net profit will be distributed to Merger
Sub directly for NeoStem’s operating expenses.

As a result of the Merger, and the automatic conversion of NeoStem's Series D Convertible Preferred Stock into an aggregate of 12,932,510 shares of NeoStem
Common Stock, which was also approved at the Special Meeting, the ownership of the NeoStem Common Stock outstanding is approximately as follows:

Number of Percentage Beneficial
Shares* Ownership Ownership*
RimAsia Capital Partners, L.P. 11,458,009 31.4% 50.5%
Erye Economy & Trading Co. Ltd/ Fullbright Finance Limited (including Madam Zhang and Mr. Shi) 4,234,918 11.6% 14.1%
Enhance Biomedical Holding Corporation 4,000,000 11.0% 19.8%
JHolders of Series D Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock as converted into common stock
(excluding RimAsia, EET/Fullbright and Enhance Biomedical) 4,292,510 11.8% 21.1%
Historic NeoStem Shareholders (other than those listed above) 7,947,749 21.8% -
Former CBH Shareholders (other than those listed above) 4,520,735 12.4% -

*The shares reflected in the number of shares column above (i) does not include (a) 9,086,124 shares of common stock which may be acquired by
RimAsia by virtue of conversion of the Company's Series C Convertible Preferred Stock or (b) shares which may be acquired upon exercise of outstanding
NeoStem stock options and warrants (5,000,000 held by RimAsia, 1,040,000 held by EET/Fullbright and 4,000,000 held by Enhance), and (ii) does include an
aggregate of 553,338 shares of common stock to be issued to Fullbright, Mr. Shi and Madam Zhang upon the receipt of PRC approvals as described in this Note
10. The beneficial ownership column reflects any of such shares which might be issued in the next 60 days in computing beneficial ownership in accordance with
SEC rules.
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The description of the Merger contained in this Note 10 does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement, as
amended, which was attached to the Company's Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus dated October 7, 2009.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereunder, the board of directors of
NeoStem expanded the size of the board from five to seven members and appointed Eric Wei (the Managing Partner of RimAsia) and Shi Mingsheng (the
Chairman of EET and Fullbright) to fill the newly created board positions, effective immediately after the Effective Time and the date of receipt of all PRC
approvals, respectively, to serve until the election and qualification of his successor or his earlier death, resignation or removal. Mr. Wei and Mr. Shi will not serve
on any of NeoStem's standing committees. As previously disclosed, Joseph Zuckerman resigned from NeoStem's Board of Directors as of the Effective Time and
Edward C. Geehr, M.D. has been appointed effective as of the Effective Time to the Company’s Board of Directors to replace Dr. Zuckerman. Dr. Geehr will also
take Dr. Zuckerman’s seat on the Nominating Committee as of the Effective Time of the Merger.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

As of July 1, 2009, NeoStem, CBH, CBC and RimAsia (of which Mr. Wei is managing partner), which is a significant investor in the Company and CBH, entered
into a Funding Agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that RimAsia would supply additional funding to both NeoStem and CBH in an amount up to $1.6
million, which amount would be deemed settled upon its receipt of the increased amount of NeoStem securities to be received by RimAsia as part of the Merger
consideration, which increase was agreed to in the July 2009 amendment to the Merger Agreement. If less than $1.6 million had been advanced at that time, the
difference would be paid to NeoStem at the closing of the Merger. The Merger closed on October 30, 2009. As of October 29, 2009 approximately $1,070,000 had
been advanced on behalf of NeoStem and approximately $846,000 had been advanced on behalf of CBH, by RimAsia. The amount of funds advanced by RimAsia
has exceeded the upper limit of $1.6 million resulting in additional funds due RimAsia in the amount of approximately $316,000, which will be paid to RimAsia
from cash due CBH being disbursed in connection with the closing of the Merger

Immediately prior to the closing of the Merger, in order to accelerate satisfaction of certain CBH obligations to EET, CBH and EET caused Erye to split-off its real
estate assets into a new entity, with the end result that, subject to PRC approvals, (a) Erye is bound to transfer the land and building for its principal manufacturing
facility to EET or its affiliate for a nominal sum to be agreed upon by the parties, and (b) EET or its affiliate is bound to lease such principal manufacturing facility
back to Erye at a nominal fee for a term through the construction and validation period of Erye’s new manufacturing facility and until such date as Erye’s new
facility is completed and fully operational, such that Erye is assured that there is no interruption of its operations by reason of such transfers and agreements. The
land and building have a book value on CBH’s books of approximately $ 6.7 million (and an unknown estimated fair market value).

Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement between Merger Sub and EET, during the three year period commencing on the first day of the first fiscal quarter after the
Joint Venture Agreement becomes effective, 45% of the net profit after tax will be provided to Erye, rather than distributed to NeoStem, to fund construction of

Erye’s new plant, thereby benefitting EET. Shi Mingsheng and Madam Zhang Jian own approximately 63% and 10%, respectively, of EET.

COMPENSATORY ARRANGEMENTS

Adoption of the Non-US Based Equity Compensation Plan

On October 29, 2009, the stockholders of NeoStem duly adopted the Non-US Based Equity Compensation Plan (“Non-US Plan”) at the Special Meeting. Persons
eligible to receive restricted and unrestricted stock awards, warrants, stock appreciation rights or other awards under the Non-US Plan are those service providers to
NeoStem and its subsidiaries and affiliates providing services outside of the United States, including employees and consultants of NeoStem and its subsidiaries
and affiliates, who, in the opinion of the Compensation Committee, are in a position to contribute to NeoStem’s success. A description of the Non-US Plan is set
forth in the Joint Proxy Statement/Registration Statement on Form S-4. On October 29, 2009, upon the adoption of the Non-US Plan, NeoStem issued 225,000
shares of common stock and warrants (option-like equity grants) to purchase an aggregate of 1,350,000 shares of common stock. On November 2, 2009, an
additional 300,000 shares and warrants to purchase 300,000 shares were also issued to a service provider under the Non-US Plan. Upon receipt of PRC approvals,
175,000 Merger Bonus shares will be issued to each of Mr. Shi Mingsheng and Madame Zhang Jian under the Non-US Plan.
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Amendment to the 2009 Plan

On October 29, 2009, the Company amended its 2009 Equity Compensation Plan (the "2009 Plan") to increase the number of shares of common stock available for
issuance under the 2009 Plan from (a) 3,800,000, to (b) 9,750,000. The 2009 Plan, as amended, was duly adopted by the stockholders of NeoStem at the Special
Meeting. Persons eligible to receive restricted and unrestricted stock awards, options, stock appreciation rights or other awards under the 2009 Plan are those
employees, consultants and directors of NeoStem and its subsidiaries who, in the opinion of the Compensation Committee, are in a position to contribute to its
success. A description of the 2009 Plan is set forth in the Joint Proxy Statement/Registration Statement on Form S-4.

Equity Awards

On October 29, 2009, upon shareholder approval of the Merger and the increase in the shares available under the 2009 Plan, NeoStem issued options to purchase an
aggregate of 1,360,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.04 per share (the closing price of a share of NeoStem common stock on the NYSE Amex
on the date of grant) to its officers, directors, employees and consultants, of which 1,200,000 were issued to executive officers and none were issued to non-
employee directors. Of such options, NeoStem issued the following awards to its principal executive officer, principal financial officer and named executive
officers: (i) to Robin L. Smith, its Chairman and CEO, an option to purchase 750,000 shares, scheduled to vest as to 250,000 shares on the achievement of a
specified business milestone, as to an additional 250,000 shares on July 8, 2010 and as to the remaining 250,000 shares on July 8, 2011; (ii) to Catherine M. Vaczy,
its Vice President and General Counsel, an option to purchase 100,000 shares which vests in its entirety on July 8, 2010; and (iii) to Larry A. May, its CFO, an
option to purchase 150,000 shares, which vested upon grant.

On October 30, 2009, upon the closing of the Merger, NeoStem issued options to purchase an aggregate of 500,000 shares of common stock to its officers,
directors, consultants and advisors, of which 200,000 were issued to executive officers and 150,000 were issued to non-employee directors. In addition, upon the
closing of the Merger, NeoStem issued the following equity awards: (i) to Robin L. Smith, 175,000 shares and (ii) to Catherine M. Vaczy, 150,000 shares. Such
shares of NeoStem Common Stock were granted (as described in the Form S-4) in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement which provided that the
Compensation Committee of the NeoStem Board of Directors (the “Compensation Committee”) has the authority to grant as bonuses in connection with the
transactions contemplated by the Merger, in its discretion, up to an aggregate of 1,000,000 shares, or options to purchase up to 1,000,000 shares of NeoStem
Common Stock, in any combination, under any equity compensation plan (“Merger Bonus” shares).

Amendment to the 2003 Equity Participation Plan (the “2003 Plan”)

On October 30, 2009, NeoStem amended its 2003 Equity Participation Plan (the “2003 Plan”) to grant the NeoStem Board of Directors or an appropriate committee
thereof the authority to reprice options, (ii) a one-time repricing of the exercise price of certain NeoStem options and warrants to purchase shares of NeoStem
Common Stock (the “Repricing”) and (iii) giving the Board of Directors or an appropriate committee thereof discretion to issue certain cash or equity awards in
connection with the Repricing. A description of the Repricing is set forth in the Joint Proxy Statement/Registration Statement on Form S-4.

On October 30, 2009, NeoStem implemented the Repricing. NeoStem repriced an aggregate of 754,250 outstanding options (of which 500,500 were held by
executive officers and none were held by non-employee directors) with a range of exercise prices from $2.39 to $25.00 to a strike price of $1.90 (the closing price
of a share of NeoStem common stock on the NYSE Amex on the date of the repricing). The following outstanding stock options held by NeoStem’s principal
executive officer, principal financial officer and named executive officers were amended to reduce the strike price to $1.90: (i) for Robin L. Smith, an aggregate of
374,000 options with exercise prices ranging from $4.95 to $25.00; (ii) for Catherine M. Vaczy, an aggregate of 71,000 options with exercise prices ranging from
$4.95 to $10.00; and (iii) for Larry A. May, an aggregate of 55,500 options with exercise prices ranging from $4.95 to $18.00. NeoStem also repriced privately
issued warrants (warrants issued other than to the public or the underwriters in NeoStem’s August 2007 public offering) to purchase approximately 1,203,890
shares of Common Stock with exercise prices ranging from $4.00 to $8.00, to a range of approximately $3.82 to $6.81. Certain named executive officers of
NeoStem are holders of warrants to purchase shares of NeoStem Common Stock at $8.00 per share for which their exercise prices were reduced to approximately
$6.18 per share. An aggregate of 27,427 of such warrants are held by named executive officers in the following quantities: Robin L. Smith (25,427) and Catherine
M. Vaczy (2,000); and an aggregate of 34,092 of such warrants are held by two non-employee directors.
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On October 30, 2009, NeoStem effected option awards pursuant and subject to the Company’s 2009 Equity Compensation Plan and stockholder approval received
at the Special Meeting to issue discretionary grants of cash or equity awards in connection with the option repricing, as described in the Joint Proxy
Statement/Registration Statement on Form S-4. Options (“Discretionary Options”) were awarded to officers, directors, employees, consultants and advisors to
purchase an aggregate of 562,274 shares of common stock (of which 325,109 were awarded to executive officers and 26,774 were awarded to non-employee
directors) at an exercise price of $1.90 (the closing price of a share of NeoStem common stock on the date of grant), and an aggregate of approximately $201,000 in
cash awards which may be paid upon the achievement of business milestones. Of such Discretionary Options, NeoStem issued the following awards to its principal
executive officer, principal financial officer and named executive officers: (i) to Robin L. Smith, its Chairman and CEO, an option to purchase 229,678 shares,
which vested upon grant; (ii) to Catherine M. Vaczy, its Vice President and General Counsel, an option to purchase 53,955 shares, which vested upon grant; and
(iii) to Larry A. May, its CFO, an option to purchase 41,476 shares, which vested as to 31,620 shares on the grant date and an aggregate of 9,856 shares will vest
upon the achievement of business milestones.

On November 4, 2009, the Company’s Compensation Committee approved the following with regard to compensation matters for the Company’s Board of
Directors: (i) the grant of options under the Company’s 2009 Equity Compensation Plan to purchase an aggregate of 750,000 shares of Common Stock to members
of the Company’s Board of Directors, and 100,000 granted to the Board Secretary, Catherine Vaczy, in consideration for Board services, with an exercise price
equal to the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of grant and vesting as to one-third of the shares on each of the first, second and third year
anniversaries of the date of grant; (ii) the grant of options under the Company’s 2009 Equity Compensation Plan to purchase an aggregate of 200,000 shares of
Common Stock to members of the Company’s Board of Directors who serve as board or committee chairpersons, in consideration for such services, with an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of grant and vesting as to one-third of the shares on each of the first, second and third
year anniversaries of the date of grant; and (iii) the grant of stock awards for an aggregate of 180,000 shares of Common Stock under the Company’s 2009 Equity
Compensation Plan that are fully vested upon issuance to two Directors and the issuance to one such Director of cash in the amount of $20,000 in recognition of
past service. Additionally, a grant to an employee was approved, of options to purchase 20,000 shares of Common Stock with an exercise price equal to the fair
market value of the Common Stock on the date of grant and vesting as to one-half of the shares on the first and second one year anniversaries of the date of grant.
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Note 11 — Modification of Revenue Recognition Policy

During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, the Company modified its revenue recognition policy relative to the license fees it recognizes from physicians seeking to
establish autologous adult stem cell collection centers, to recognize such fees as revenues ratably over the appropriate period of time to which the revenue element
relates. Previously these license fees were recognized in full when agreements were signed and the physician had been qualified by the Company’s credentialing
committee. In previous reports we have described these fees as “start-up” fees. Effective with the filing of the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,
2009, we have re-characterized these fees as license fees in order to better describe the nature of the relationship between NeoStem and these physicians and
physician practices and the nature of the fees received. If this modified revenue recognition policy had been in place during the year ended December 31, 2006 and
in each subsequent reporting period, the impact of accounting for revenues and its corresponding impact on net loss for each of the years ended December 31,
2006, 2007 and 2008 and the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2009 would have been as follows, reflecting for each such period the relevant amounts as
reported and as if adjusted:

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2007 2008 2008 2009
Total Revenue as Reported $ 45,724  $ 231,664 $ 83,541 $ 49,468 $ 157,709
Total Revenue if Adjusted $ 36,002 $ 57,148 $ 145,924 $ 104,768 $ 182,934
Bad Debt Expense as Reported $ - 8 19,500 $ 21,500 $ -3 -
Bad Debt Expense if Adjusted $ - $ 4,500 $ 9,450 $ - $ -
Net Loss as Reported $ (6,051,400) $ (10,445,473) $ (9,242,071) $ (7,623,353) $ (14,433,688)
Net Loss if Adjusted $ (6,061,122) $ (10,604,989) $ (9,167,638) $ (7,678,653) $ (14,408,463)
Change $ 9,722) $ (159,516) $ 74,433 $ 55,300 $ 25,225
% of Net Loss 0.16% 1.53% 0.81% 0.73% 0.17%

The Company has determined that this modification of our revenue recognition policy does not require a retroactive application to our previously issued financial
statements for the periods set forth above because the impact on the financial statements taken as a whole during such periods is not material.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
General

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the documents incorporated herein contain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual
results, performance or achievements of the Company, or industry results, to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed
or implied by such forward-looking statements. When used in this Quarterly Report, statements that are not statements of current or historical fact may be deemed
to be forward-looking statements. Without limiting the foregoing, the words "plan," "intend," "may," "will," "expect," "believe," "could," "anticipate," "estimate,"
or "continue" or similar expressions or other variations or comparable terminology are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Additionally,
statements concerning our ability to successfully develop the adult stem cell business at home and abroad, the future of regenerative medicine and the role of adult
stem cells in that future, the future use of adult stem cells as a treatment option and the role of VSELs in that future, and the potential revenue growth of such
business are forward-looking statements. Our future operating results are dependent upon many factors, and the Company's further development is highly
dependent on future medical and research developments and market acceptance, which is outside its control. Forward-looking statements may not be realized due
to a variety of factors, including, without limitation, (i) the Company’s ability to manage the business despite continuing operating losses and cash outflows; (ii) the
Company’s ability to obtain sufficient capital or a strategic business arrangement to fund its operations and expansion plans, including meeting its

financial obligations under various licensing and other strategic arrangements and the successful commercialization of the relevant technology; (iii) the Company’s
ability to build the management and human resources and infrastructure necessary to support the growth of the business; (iv) competitive factors and developments
beyond the Company’s control; (v) scientific and medical developments beyond the Company’s control; (vi) the Company’s inability to obtain appropriate
governmental licenses or any other adverse effect or limitations caused by government regulation of the business; (vii) whether any of the Company’s current or
future patent applications result in issued patents and the Company’s ability to obtain and maintain other rights to technology required or desirable for the conduct
of its business; (viii) whether any potential strategic benefits of various licensing transactions will be realized and whether any potential benefits from the
acquisition of these new licensed technologies will be realized; (ix) whether the Company can obtain the consents it may require to sublicensing arrangements from
technology licensors in connection with technology development; (x) the Company’s ability to maintain its NYSE Amex listing; and (xi) the other factors discussed
in Item 1A, “Risk Factors” contained in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 (the “Form 10-K”) and in other
reports that we file with the SEC.

nn nn

Merger; China Expansion

Additional risks and uncertainties relate to (i) the Company’s merger transaction (“Merger”) pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger with China
Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("CBH"), China Biopharmaceuticals Corp., a British Virgin Islands corporation and wholly-owned
subsidiary of CBH, and CBH Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of NeoStem to acquire a 51% ownership
interest in Suzhou Erye Pharmaceuticals Company Ltd., a Sino-foreign joint venture with limited liability organized under the laws of the People’s Republic of
China; and (ii) the Company’s other expansion activities in China, that may cause actual future experience and results to differ materially from those discussed in
these forward-looking statements. Important factors (i) related to the Merger that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, (a) costs related to
the Merger; (b) the inability to integrate the Company’s and CBH's businesses successfully and grow such merged businesses as anticipated; (c) the need for
outside financing to meet capital requirements; and (d) failure to have an effective Joint Venture Agreement satisfactory to the parties and regulatory authorities; (ii)
related to the Company’s other initiatives in China that might cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, (a) costs related to funding these initiatives; (b)
the successful application under Chinese law of the variable interest entity structure to the Company’s business, which structure the Company is relying on to
conduct its business in China due to the fact that the Catalogue Guiding Foreign Investment in Industries in China categorizes the stem cell business as a prohibited
business in China; (c) the inability to integrate the Company and the business operations in China successfully and grow such merged businesses as anticipated; and
(d) the need for outside financing to meet capital requirements; and (iii) related to each of the Merger and the Company’s other expansion activities in China,
respectively, the other events and factors disclosed in the Company’s Current Reports on Form 8-K dated November 2, 2008 and July 2, 2009, respectively, relating
to the Merger and expansion into China, respectively, and other risk factors contained in periodic Company filings with the SEC and disclosed in the Proxy
Statement/Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC in connection with the Merger. The Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission are available for review at www.sec.gov under “Search for Company Filings.” Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Except as required by law, the Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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GENERAL

NeoStem is engaged in a platform business of operating a commercial autologous (donor and recipient are the same) adult stem cell bank and is pioneering the pre-
disease collection, processing and long-term storage of stem cells from adult donors so that they can access such stem cells for their own future medical treatment.
We are managing a network of adult stem cell collection centers in major metropolitan areas of the United States. We have also entered the research and
development arenas, through the acquisition of a worldwide exclusive license to VSEL™ Technology, an early-stage technology that utilizes very small
embryonic-like stem cells that exist in adult human bone marrow. Very small embryonic-like stem cells have many physical characteristics typically found in
embryonic stem cells, including the ability to differentiate into specialized cells found in substantially all the different types of cells and tissue that make up the
body. Additionally, we are pursuing other technologies to advance our position in the field of stem cell tissue regeneration.

The adult stem cell industry is a field independent of embryonic stem cell research which NeoStem believes is more likely to be burdened by regulatory, legal,
ethical and technical issues than adult stem cell research. Embryonic stem cell research is also burdened with the issues of tissue compatibility. Medical
researchers, scientists, medical institutions, physicians, pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies are currently developing therapies for the
treatment of disease using adult stem cells. As these adult stem cell therapies obtain necessary regulatory approvals and become standard of care, patients will need
a service to collect, process and bank their stem cells. NeoStem intends to provide this service.

Initial participants in our collection center network have been single physician practices who opened collection centers in California, Pennsylvania and Nevada.
Revenues generated by these early adopters have not been significant and are not expected to become significant. However, these centers have served as a platform
for the development of NeoStem’s business model and today NeoStem is focusing on multi-physician and multi-specialty practices joining its network in major
metropolitan areas but continues to align with physicians that have a client base who have indicated a particular interest in stem cell collection and storage. Toward
this end, NeoStem signed an agreement in June 2008 for a New York City stem cell collection center to be opened by Bruce Yaffe, M.D., of Yaffe, Ruden and
Associates, which facility became operational in November 2008. In July 2008, NeoStem signed an agreement for a Santa Monica, California based stem cell
collection center to be opened by Stem Collect of Santa Monica LLC at The Hall Center. This facility became operational in the fall of 2008. Additionally,
NeoStem signed an agreement with Celvida LLC pursuant to which a Southern Florida stem cell collection center located in Coral Gables, a suburb of Miami,
became operational in September 2008. In March 2009, the Company signed an agreement to open a collection center with the Giampapa Institute for Anti-Aging
Medical Therapy in Montclair, New Jersey, which facility became operational shortly thereafter. In addition, in May 2009 the Company entered into a collection
agreement with Primary Caring of Malibu, based in California, which facility also became operational shortly thereafter.

During 2008, parallel to growing the platform business and the efforts we undertook in that regard to establish a network of collection centers in certain major
metropolitan areas of the United States, we recognized the need to acquire a revenue generating business in the United States or abroad and began exploring
acquisition opportunities of revenue generating businesses. In November 2008, NeoStem entered into the Merger Agreement with China Biopharmaceuticals
Holdings, Inc. (“CBH”) to acquire the 51% interest in Suzhou Erye Pharmaceuticals Company Ltd. (“Erye”) a Sino-foreign limited liability joint venture organized
under the laws of the PRC, which has been in business for more than 50 years and currently manufactures over 100 drugs on seven Good Manufacturing Practices
(GMP) lines, including small molecule drugs. Erye specializes in research and development, production and sales of pharmaceutical products, as well as chemicals
used in pharmaceutical products. The Merger Agreement was amended in July 2009 and again in August 2009. The proposed Merger and related transactions were
submitted to a vote of the NeoStem stockholders at a Special Meeting of Shareholders held on October 29, 2009, and to a vote of the CBH stockholders held on the
same day, and were approved by the stockholders of both companies. The Merger was consummated on October 30, 2009. Also in November 2008, NeoStem
entered into the Share Exchange Agreement to obtain benefits from Shandong New Medicine Research Institute of Integrated Traditional and Western Medicine
Limited Liability Company, a China limited liability company. Subsequently, NeoStem decided to separately pursue its stem cell initiatives in China and in July
2009 terminated the Share Exchange Agreement.
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The Company has begun other initiatives to expand its operations into China, including with respect to technology licensing, establishment of stem cell processing
and storage capabilities and research and clinical development. RimAsia, a principal stockholder of the Company and a principal securityholder of CBH, has been
facilitating certain of these efforts and has paid certain expenses that the Company has agreed to reimburse (approximately $473,000 of which was reimbursed out
of the proceeds of the private placement financing of preferred stock and warrants in April 2009 which raised gross proceeds of $11 million, described below). In
connection with the expansion into China, the Company has established the WFOE and put in place variable interest entity arrangements with respect to each of
Qingdao Niao and Beijing Ruijieao with respect to these activities (described below). The Company believes that these activities will be sufficient to help the
Company expand into the China market and shall be a substitute for its moving forward with closing the transactions under the Share Exchange Agreement.

In February and March 2009, in order to move forward certain research and development activities, strategic relationships in various clinical and therapeutic areas
as well as to support activities related to the Merger Agreement and Share Exchange Agreement, and other ongoing obligations of the Company, the Company
issued promissory notes (the “RimAsia Notes”) totaling $1,150,000 to RimAsia, which notes bore interest at a rate equal to 10% per annum and mature on October
31, 2009 except that they matured earlier in the case of an equity financing by the Company that raised in excess of $10,000,000. The RimAsia Notes plus accrued
interest were paid in April 2009 (as described below). Additionally, as of July 1, 2009, NeoStem, CBH, CBC and RimAsia entered into a Funding Agreement
pursuant to which it was agreed that RimAsia would supply additional funding to both NeoStem and CBH in an amount up to

$1.6 million (including, as of September 30, 2009, approximately $1 million advanced on behalf of NeoStem and approximately $427,000 advanced on behalf of
CBH), which amount would be deemed settled upon its receipt of the increased amount of NeoStem securities to be received by RimAsia as part of the Merger
consideration, which increase was agreed to in the July 2009 amendment to the Merger Agreement. If less than $1.6 million had been advanced at that time, the
difference was to be paid to NeoStem at the closing of the Merger. In the event the Merger had not received shareholder approval by October 31, 2009, NeoStem
would have been required to repay RimAsia all payments incurred or made by RimAsia on behalf of NeoStem. The Merger and related transactions were presented
for stockholder approval at a Special Meeting of Stockholders held on October 29, 2009 and were approved. As of October 29, 2009 approximately $1,070,000 had
been advanced on behalf of NeoStem and approximately $846,000 had been advanced on behalf of CBH, by RimAsia. The amount of funds advanced by RimAsia
has exceeded the upper limit of $1.6 million resulting in additional funds due RimAsia in the amount of approximately $316,000, which will be paid to RimAsia
from cash due CBH being disbursed in connection with the closing of the Merger.

The Company has engaged in various capital raising activities to pursue its business opportunities. In April and June of 2009, respectively, it raised gross proceeds
of approximately $11 million and $5 million, respectively, through the private placement of its Series D Preferred Stock and Series D Warrants.

The acquisition of the VSEL technology was made through our acquisition of our subsidiary Stem Cell Technologies, Inc. (“SCTI”) in a stock-for-stock

exchange. Although the funds obtained through the acquisition of SCTI funded certain early obligations under NeoStem’s agreements relating to the VSEL
technology, substantial additional funds will be needed and additional research and development activities will be required to meet its development obligations
under the License Agreement and develop the VSEL technology. NeoStem has applied for Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) grants and may also seek
to obtain funds through applications for other State and Federal grants, grants abroad, direct investments, strategic arrangements as well as other funding sources to
help offset all or a portion of these costs.

36




During the quarter ended March 31, 2009 the Company took steps to improve its cryopreservation operations and reduce its fixed overhead by entering into a four
year agreement with Progenitor Cell Therapy LLC (“PCT”) to outsource cryopreservation operations to PCT. Prior to commencing these services, PCT agrees to
provide certain preliminary services consisting of technology transfer and protocol review and revision to ensure that the processing and storage services are cGMP
compliant. The agreement sets forth agreed upon fees for the delivery of the services as well as providing for a one-time payment of $35,000 for the preliminary
services associated with the transfer of the Company’s cryopreservation process and standard operating practices to PCT’s laboratory and incorporation into PCT’s
existing standard operating practices. An initial payment of $20,000 was paid upon commencement of services during the quarter ended March 31, 2009. The
transfer of cryopreservation operations was completed in April 2009, the final $15,000 was paid and the Company’s laboratory in Los Angeles was closed in June
2009. The Company did not suffer any significant losses as a result of closing this laboratory. In addition, the Company believes the shifting of our
cryopreservation activities from a fixed cost to a variable cost will allow the Company to utilize its cash in a more strategic fashion.

In March 2009, the Company and PCT expanded PCT’s services to include its developing a plan to set up a stem cell processing and manufacturing operation in
Beijing, China that the Company would pursue in partnership with an off-shore entity. This plan would support research and cell therapy development and
manufacturing operations. The plan will include a conceptual architectural design, cost estimates for construction, facility validation to meet cGMP standards,
equipment requirements and estimated costs of equipment procurement, and other related matters. PCT’s fees for this work will be $100,000 (of which $50,000
was paid in March 2009) plus expenses.

In connection with carrying out its expansion objectives in the PRC, NeoStem has recently established a wholly foreign owned subsidiary in China, known as
NeoStem (China), Inc. (“WFOE”). The WFOE may engage in the research & development, transfer and technological consultation service of bio-technology,
regenerative medical technology and anti-aging technology excluding the development or application of human stem cell, gene diagnosis and treatment
technologies; consultation of economic information; import, export and wholesaling of machinery and equipments (the import and export do not involve the goods
specifically stipulated in/by state-operated trade, import & export quota license, export quota bidding, export permit, etc.). In furtherance of complying with the
PRC'’s foreign investment prohibition on stem cell research and development, clinical trials and related activities, NeoStem’s current business in the PRC is
conducted via two domestic variable interest entities (“VIEs”): Qingdao Niao Bio-Technology Ltd. (“Qingdao Niao”) and Beijing Ruijieao Bio-Technology Ltd.
(“Beijing Ruijieao”), each a Chinese domestic company controlled by the WFOE through various business agreements.

As of September 30, 2009, the WFOE has been capitalized in the total amount of approximately $2,900,000. The capital investment in the two VIEs is funded by
NeoStem through the WFOE and recorded as interest-free loans to the shareholders of Qingdao Niao and Beijing Ruijieao. As of September 30, 2009, the total
amount of interest free loans to these shareholders of the VIEs was approximately $323,500. The Company expects that the WFOE will require substantial
additional funding in order for the Company to continue its expansion plans in China associated with its stem cell business.

In May 2009, Qingdao Niao entered into leases with Beijing Zhong-guan-cun Life Science Park Development Corp., Ltd. pursuant to which Qingdao Niao is
leasing laboratory, office and storage space in Beijing for the aggregate monthly amount of approximately $23,000. Lease payments are due quarterly in advance,
and upon entering into the lease a three month security deposit was required in addition to the first quarterly payment. The term of the leases is for approximately
three years. It is anticipated that Beijing Ruijieao will take over the lease.

In June 2009, Qingdao Niao entered into a three year co-operation agreement with the Qingdao Second Sanatorium of Jinan Military Command (“Second
Sanatorium™). As both a leading comprehensive hospital within the PLA network and as one of the principal healthcare centers in charge of ensuring the well-being
of senior and retired military officials in China, Qingdao Second Sanatorium is a key player within the domestic anti-aging and cosmetics arena. Qingdao Niao
intends to collaborate with Second Sanatorium to offer both stem cell based therapies for a variety of conditions as well as stem cell based anti-aging and cosmetics
therapies.
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In June 2009, Qingdao Niao entered into a co-operation agreement with Shandong Wendeng Orthopedic Hospital (“Wendeng Hospital”) to conduct and develop
clinical research and the clinical application of autologous stem cells for the treatment of a variety of orthopedic conditions for a term of five years. Wendeng
Hospital is considered to be one of the leading specialist orthopedic hospitals in China, with close to 90% of their inpatient capacity dedicated to orthopedic cases.
Qingdao Niao intends to establish its first onshore patient treatment facility in collaboration with Wendeng Hospital.

In July 2009, the WOFE entered into a cooperation agreement with NeoStem’s PRC consultant, Shandong Life Science and Technology Research Institute
(“SLSI”), a not-for-profit organization under PRC law, to organize and convene various clinical trials. This agreement requires funding by the WOFE in the amount
of RMB 5,000,000 (approximately $730,000).

In order to advance our regenerative medicine business here and abroad, in February 2009, the Company entered into a License Agreement with Vincent
Giampapa, M.D., F.A.C.S pursuant to which the Company acquired a world-wide, exclusive, royalty bearing, perpetual and irrevocable license, with the right to
sublicense, to certain innovative stem cell technology and applications for cosmetic facial and body procedures and skin rejuvenation. In addition, in January 2009,
the Company and Dr. Giampapa entered into a three year consulting agreement whereby Dr. Giampapa will provide consulting services in the anti-aging area.

In order to advance our regenerative medicine business abroad and expand our expertise into a new area, effective March 2009, the Company entered into a
License Agreement with Regenerative Sciences, LLC (“RSI”), pursuant to which the Company acquired an exclusive, royalty bearing, perpetual and irrevocable
license, with the right to sublicense, for the Asia territory, to use an innovative process that rapidly grows a patient’s own adult stem cells to treat a variety of
musculoskeletal diseases. The licensed procedure has been developed by RSI, a Colorado-based company focused on developing a medical procedure for the
treatment of chronic orthopedic conditions. In addition, effective March 2009, the Company and RSI entered into a three year consulting agreement whereby RSI
will provide to the Company consulting services in the area of stem cell therapy in orthopedics for the development of business in Asia.

In April 2009, the Company entered into a License Agreement with Vincent Falanga, M.D., pursuant to which the Company acquired a world-wide, exclusive,
royalty bearing license, with the right to sublicense, to certain innovative stem cell technology and applications for wound healing, continuing until the later of ten
years from the first commercial sale or the last to expire patent claim.

In June 2009, the Company and Enhance BioMedical Holdings Limited ("Enhance BioMedical"), a Shanghai corporation and a subsidiary of Enhance Holding
Corporation ("Enhance Holding"), entered into an agreement to develop a stem cell collection and treatment network in Shanghai, Taiwan and the Chinese
provinces of Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Fujian, Anhui and Jiangxi using NeoStem’s proprietary stem cell technologies. Enhance BioMedical has healthcare provider
relationships with numerous hospitals and doctors in Taiwan and Shanghai, as well as in the five provinces in China to which the agreement relates. Enhance
BioMedical operates the Anti-Aging and Prevention Medical Center in Taipei, Taiwan, with facilities focused on stem cell research and development and anti-aging
therapies. The agreement is a ten-year, exclusive, royalty bearing agreement (which subject to certain terms and conditions, is renewable for a subsequent ten (10)
year term at the option of Enhance BioMedical) pursuant to which the Company will provide Enhance BioMedical with the training, technical, and other assistance
required for Enhance Biomedical to offer stem cell based therapies in Shanghai, Taiwan and the five eastern China provinces. This agreement also gives NeoStem
the option to acquire up to a 20% fully diluted equity interest in Enhance for a period of five years. NeoStem will receive certain milestone payments as well as be
entitled to a stated royalty on the revenues derived from Enhance BioMedical’s offering these stem cell based therapies. In addition, NeoStem may be eligible to
receive other fees in connection with assisting in the launching of the Network. Enhance BioMedical was an investor in the April 2009 Private Placement, pursuant
to which it purchased $5 million of Series D Units, and thus acquired 400,000 shares of Series D Stock (automatically convertible into 4,000,000 shares of
Common Stock upon stockholder approval) and 4,000,000 Series D Warrants, each to purchase one share of Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.50 per share
(to become exercisable upon stockholder approval). Approval of the conversion of the Series D Stock and the exercisability of the Series D Warrants was obtained
at the NeoStem Special Meeting of Stockholders held on October 29, 2009. Upon such approval and the consummation of the Merger, Enhance BioMedical
became the beneficial owner of approximately 19.8% of the Company.
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All of the activities above are designed to broaden the scope of the Company’s operations and to enter into the arena of advanced stem cell and regenerative
medicine therapies in the United States and China. While the Company continues to pursue its platform business of operating a commercial autologous adult stem
cell bank, it has made a determination that the platform business will be enhanced if the Company acquires and develops advanced stem cell regenerative medicine
therapies.

With regard to the Merger, it is not anticipated that in the next year this acquisition will generate sufficient excess cash flow to support NeoStem’s platform
business and therefore NeoStem will also need to raise substantial additional funds to fund its platform business and/or acquire another revenue generating
business. NeoStem’s history of losses and liquidity problems may make it difficult to raise additional funding. There can be no assurance that NeoStem will be able
to obtain additional funding on terms acceptable to NeoStem. Any equity financing may be dilutive to stockholders and debt financing, if available, may involve
significant restrictive covenants.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2009, the Company modified its revenue recognition policy relative to the license fees it recognizes from physicians seeking to
establish autologous adult stem cell collection centers, to recognize such fees as revenues ratably over the appropriate period of time to which the revenue element
relates. Previously these license fees were recognized in full when agreements were signed and the physician had been qualified by the Company’s credentialing
committee. In previous reports we have described these fees as “start-up” fees. Effective with the filing of the Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,
2009, we have re-characterized these fees as license fees in order to better describe the nature of the relationship between NeoStem and these physicians and
physician practices and the nature of the fees received. If this modified revenue recognition policy had been in place during the year ended December 31, 2006 and
in each subsequent reporting period, the impact of accounting for revenues and its corresponding impact on net loss for each of the years ended December 31,
2006, 2007 and 2008 and the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2009 would have been as follows, reflecting for each such period the relevant amounts as
reported and as if adjusted:

Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2007 2008 2008 2009
Total Revenue as Reported $ 45,724  $ 231,664 $ 83,541 $ 49,468 $ 157,709
Total Revenue if Adjusted $ 36,002 $ 57,148 $ 145,924 $ 104,768 $ 182,934
Bad Debt Expense as Reported $ - 8 19,500 $ 21,500 $ -3 -
Bad Debt Expense if Adjusted $ - $ 4,500 $ 9,450 $ - $ -
Net Loss as Reported $ (6,051,400) $ (10,445,473) $ (9,242,071) $ (7,623,353) $ (14,433,688)
Net Loss if Adjusted $ (6,061,122) $ (10,604,989) $ (9,167,638) $ (7,678,653) $ (14,408,463)
Change $ 9,722) $ (159,516) $ 74,433 $ 55,300 $ 25,225
% of Net Loss 0.16% 1.53% 0.81% 0.73% 0.17%

The Company has determined that this modification of our revenue recognition policy does not require a retroactive application to our previously issued financial
statements for the periods set forth above because the impact on the financial statements taken as a whole during such periods is not material.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2009 compared to Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008

Revenue

For the three months ended September 30, 2009, total revenues were $85,100 compared to approximately $25,200 for the three months ended September 30,
2008. The revenues generated in the three months ended September 30, 2009 were principally from stem cell collection fees and monthly stem cell storage fees
totaling $79,100, and the balance was from licensing fees derived from physicians in our collection center network. The revenues generated in the three months
ended September 30, 2008 were from stem cell collection fees and monthly stem cell storage fees in the period in the amount of $ 11,600 and the balance of $
13,000 were licensing fees associated with fees earned from our physicians in our collection center network.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, total revenues were approximately $157,700 compared to $49,500 for the nine months ended September 30,
2008. The revenues generated in the nine months ended September 30, 2009 were principally from stem cell collection fees and monthly stem cell storage fees
totaling $133,600, the balance were from licensing fees derived from physicians in our collection center network totaling and $9,000 in other revenue. The
revenues generated in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 were from stem cell collection fees and monthly stem cell storage fees in the period in the
amount of $21,500 and the balance of $ 28,000 were licensing fees associated with fees earned from our physicians in our collection center network.

Operating Expenses
Selling, general, administrative and research expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2009 have increased by $5,327,500 or 275% over the three months
ended September 30, 2008, from $1,935,700 to $7,263,200.

Historically, the Company has used a variety of equity instruments to minimize its use of cash and to pay for services and to incentivize staff, consultants and other
service providers. The use of these instruments has resulted in significant charges to the results of operations. In general, these equity instruments were used to pay
for staff and consultant compensation, director fees, marketing activities, investor relations and other activities. In the quarter ended September 30, 2009 the use of
equity instruments to pay for such expenses resulted in charges to selling, general, administrative and research expenses of $2,073,500, an increase of $1,305,900
over the quarter ended September 30, 2008.

Operating expenses funded by cash were $5,189,700 for the three months ended September 30, 2009 compared with $1,168,100 in cash funded expenses for the
three months ended September 30, 2008, an increase of $4,021,600, which was the result of:

The activities related to our merger with CBH have increased our expenses by $1,396,900 primarily from the legal and professional
services utilized to prepare for public filings and shareholder approval of our merger and related matters.

Our efforts to establish an operation in China to provide advanced therapies, processing and storage, as well as research and
development capabilities has resulted in an increase in our operating expenses by approximately $1,528,100 and included
expenditures for rent of laboratory space, legal expenses associated with establishing our subsidiary company and related operations in
China, consultants retained to support our implementation and introduction of advanced therapies in China, recruiting fees

for identifying senior managers for our operation in China and travel.

Our operating expenses in the United States increased $1,096,600.

VSEL™ Technology Research in the United States has increased $511,900, in particular, operation of our Boston research laboratory
and related staff increased operating expense by $ 309,300, fees paid to consultants to support our research efforts have increased
VSEL™ Technology research expenses by $99,400, clinical studies initiated during the quarter increased our operating expenses by
$45,000, patents and other legal expenses increased our research expenses by $38,500, and increases in a various other areas of
$19,700.
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Administrative, sales and marketing expense increased by approximately $584,800. Salary and wages increased $468,900 principally
as the result of $368,500 for tax payments and tax withholdings the Company paid on behalf of certain staff members in connection
with common stock grants made during the quarter. The balance of the increase in salary and wages was the result of staff increases
and contractual salary increases. Travel and entertainment increased $51,500, rent increased $27,500 as a result of leasing office space
in New York and taxes increased $24,500. The balance of the increase, $12,400, represents the netting of increases in recruiting
expenses, investor relations, and other operating expenses offset by reductions in legal expenses, marketing expenses and other
expenses.

Selling, general administrative and research expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 have increased by $ 6,969,900 or 102% over the nine months
ended September 30, 2008, from $ 6,839,500 to $13,809,400.

Historically, the Company has used a variety of equity instruments to minimize its use of cash and to pay for services and to incentivize staff, consultants and
other service providers. The use of these instruments has resulted in significant charges to the results of operations. In general, these equity instruments were used
to pay for staff and consultant compensation, director fees, marketing activities, investor relations and other activities. In the nine months ended September 30,
2009, the use of equity instruments to pay for such expenses resulted in charges to selling, general, administrative and research expenses of $3,832,100, an increase
of $656,500 over the nine months ended September 30, 2008.

Operating expenses funded by cash were $9,977,300 for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared with $3,663,600 in cash funded expenses for the
nine months ended September 30, 2008, an increase of $ 6,313,700, which was the result of:

The activities related to our merger with CBH have increased our expenses by $ 2,232,000 primarily from the legal and professional
services utilized to prepare for public filings and shareholder approval of our merger and related matters.

Our efforts to establish an operation in China to provide processing and storage as well as research and development capabilities and
advanced therapies has resulted in an increase in our operating expenses by approximately $2,542,750 and included expenditures for
staff, rent of laboratory space, legal expenses associated with establishing our subsidiary company and related operations in China,
consultants retained to support our implementation and introduction of advanced therapies in China, recruiting fees for identifying
senior managers for our operation in China and travel.

Our operating expenses in the United States increased $1,549,600.

VSEL™ Technology Research in the United States has increased $949,800, in particular, operations of our Boston research laboratory
and related staff costs increased operating expense by $504,200, fees paid to consultants to support our research efforts have increased
VSEL research expenses by $123,100, payments to the University of Louisville in connection with our obligations for the VSEL™
Technology licensed in November 2007 increased research expenses by $81,300, the cost of clinical studies increased our research
expenses by $110,200, patent and legal expenses increased $91,500, and amortization of intangible assets as well as other related
miscellaneous costs combined to increase our research expenses by $39,500.
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Administrative, sales and marketing expense increased by approximately $599,800. Salary and wages increased $305,500, principally as
the result of $368,500 for tax payments and tax withholdings the Company paid on behalf of certain staff members in connection with
common stock grants made during the quarter offset by reductions in certain benefits and staff reductions. Legal and consulting fees
increased $105,302 as the result of licensing agreements completed in the period, the May 2009 annual shareholders meeting, and
several periodic and other reports filed with the SEC not related to our Merger activities. Investor communications costs have increased
by $145,200 as the result of increased efforts to make investors aware of the Company’s expansion into the development of stem cell
therapies and into China. Director fees increased $50,000 as the result of a new Directors’ compensation plan introduced in April 2009.
Expenses associated with recruiting key staff increased costs by $52,500. The costs required to maintain our listing on NYSE Amex
increased by $17,600 and taxes have increased $47,500. In June 2009, the Company completed its transfer of stem cell cryopreservation
operations to Progenitor Cell Therapy and the Company closed its laboratory in Los Angeles, California. The transfer of
cryopreservation operations increased expenses for the period by $35,000. Surplus equipment was transferred to our Boston laboratory
and there were no other losses associated with the closure. These cost increases were offset by a decrease in marketing expense of
$136,400 due to more focused in efforts New York and the Los Angeles areas. The balance of the decrease, $53,700 represents a
combination of increases and decreases in various expenses including reductions in travel and entertainment and investment banking
fees, offset by increases in computer expenses, operating expenses and occupancy costs.

For the three months ended September 30, 2009, interest income increased by $12,400 as the result of investing the net proceeds of the April and June 2009 Private
Placements in money market funds. Until the Series D Preferred Stock automatically converted into Common Stock upon stockholder approval on October 29,
2009, the Series D Preferred Stock required an annual dividend of 10% to be paid on April 9" of each year if it was still outstanding on such date (see below). This
dividend was being recorded ratably each month and resulted in a charge to operating results of $404,100 for the quarter ended September 30, 2009.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, interest income increased by $23,400 as the result of investing the net proceeds of the April and June 2009 Private
Placements in money market funds. Interest expense increased by $48,600 primarily due to the expense associated with increase in derivative value of warrants
issued in connection with our public offering in 2007 and interest paid on $1,150,000 of promissory notes issued to RimAsia in February and March 2009. These
notes were repaid in April 2009 upon the closing of the April 2009 Private Placement of Series D Preferred Stock. The Series D Preferred Stock required an annual
dividend of 10% payable on April 9™ of each year if the Series D Preferred Stock was outstanding at that time. This dividend was being recorded ratably each
month and resulted in a charge to operating results of $655,900 for the nine months ended September 30, 2009. The conversion of the Series D Preferred Stock
into Common Stock was one of the proposals submitted to stockholders and approved at the NeoStem Special Meeting of Stockholders held on October 29,

2009. Upon such approval, the Series D Preferred Stock automatically converted into Common Stock and thus no dividends will be payable.

For the reasons cited above, the net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2009 increased to $7,623,400 from $1,921,700 for the three months ended
September 30, 2008 and the net loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2009 increased to $14,433,700 from $6,810,700 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

General

At September 30, 2009, the Company had working capital of $3,709,400. The Company generates revenues from its adult stem cell collection activities; however,
our revenues generated from such activities have not been significant. During the nine months ended September 30, 2009, the Company met its immediate cash
requirements through existing cash balances, short-term loans aggregating $1,150,000 and offerings of preferred stock and warrants raising aggregate gross
proceeds of approximately $16 million.

During the first quarter of 2009, the Company issued promissory notes to RimAsia (the “RimAsia Notes™), a principal stockholder of the Company, which
aggregated $1,150,000 (see Note 4 - Notes Payable). In April 2009, the Company completed a private placement financing totaling $11 million (the “April 2009
Private Placement”). The financing consisted of the issuance of 880,000 units priced at $12.50 per unit (“Series D Units”), with each Series D Unit consisting of
one share of the Company’s Series D Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series D Stock”) and ten warrants (“Series D Warrants”) with each Series D
Warrant to purchase one share of Common Stock. A total of 880,000 Series D Preferred shares and 8,800,000 warrants were issued. In June 2009 with a final
closing on July 6, 2009, the Company completed an additional private placement financing with net proceeds of $4,679,220 (the “June 2009 Private

Placement”). This financing consisted of the issuance of 400,280 Series D Units priced at $12.50 per unit. A total of 400,280 Series D Preferred Stock and
4,002,800 Series D Warrants were issued. The Company paid $324,280 in fees and issued 12,971 Series D Units to agents that facilitated the June 2009 Private
Placement. The Series D Units issued to the selling agents were comprised of 12,971 shares of Series D Stock and 129,712 Series D Warrants. In total, in the April
2009 and June 2009 Private Placements, the number of shares of Series D Stock issued was 1,293,251 and the number of Series D Warrants issued was 12,932,512.
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Upon the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the voting power of the Company’s Common Stock required pursuant to the Company’s Amended and
Restated By-Laws and the NYSE Amex (which was obtained on October 29, 2009), each share of Series D Stock was to be automatically converted into ten (10)
shares of Common Stock at an initial conversion price of $1.25 per share based on an original issue price of $12.50 per share; provided that if by October 31, 2009
such affirmative vote was not achieved, the Company would be required to redeem all shares of Series D Stock at a redemption price per share of $12.50 plus the
accrued dividends as of such date. The total cash required to redeem the Series D Stock would have been $16,165,638 plus accrued dividends. The Series D Stock
had an accruing dividend of ten percent (10%) per annum, payable annually in cash on April 9th. The Series D Warrants have a per share exercise price equal to
$2.50 and are callable by the Company if the Common Stock trades at a price equal to a minimum of $3.50 for a specified period of time. Subject to the
affirmative vote of the Company’s stockholders and the rules of the NYSE Amex, the Series D Warrants were to become exercisable for five years. Pursuant to
stockholder approval obtained at the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on October 29, 2009, the Series D Stock automatically converted into 12,932,510 shares
of Common Stock and the Series D Warrants became exercisable for a period of five years through October 2014.

As aresult of NeoStem exploring acquisition opportunities of revenue generating businesses, in November 2008 NeoStem entered into the Merger Agreement with
CBH (amended in July and August 2009) to acquire the 51% ownership interest in Erye, which manufactures over 100 drugs on seven cGMP lines, and the Share
Exchange Agreement with respect to Shandong. The Merger closed on October 30, 2009. The Company is also engaged in other initiatives to expand its
operations into China including with respect to technology licensing, establishment of stem cell processing and storage capacities and research and clinical
development, which the Company decided to pursue in lieu of consummating the transactions under the Share Exchange Agreement. In June, 2009 the Company
established NeoStem China as a wholly foreign owned subsidiary of NeoStem. NeoStem China, a wholly foreign owned entity, is domiciled in Qingdao and under
its scope of business approved by the Chinese regulatory authorities, the WFOE may engage in the research & development, transfer and technological consultation
service of bio-technology, regenerative medical technology and anti-aging technology (excluding the development or application of human stem cell, gene
diagnosis and treatment technologies); consultation of economic information; import, export and wholesaling of machinery and equipments (the import and export
do not involve the goods specifically stipulated in/by state-operated trade, import & export quota license, export quota bidding, export permit, etc.). In furtherance
of complying with PRC’s foreign investment prohibition on stem cell research and development, clinical trials and related activities, we conduct our current
business in the PRC via two domestic variable interest entities. To date operations in China have been limited. The Company has incurred and expects to continue
to incur substantial expenses in connection with these China activities. Neither the Merger transactions nor the Company’s other expansion activities into China are
expected to generate sufficient excess cash flow to support NeoStem’s platform business or its initiatives in China in the near term.

As of July 1, 2009, NeoStem, CBH, CBC and RimAsia, which is a significant investor in the Company and CBH, entered into a Funding Agreement pursuant to
which it was agreed that RimAsia would supply additional funding to both NeoStem and CBH in an amount up to $1.6 million (including, as of September 30,
2009 approximately $1million advanced on behalf of NeoStem and approximately $427,000 advanced on behalf of CBH), which amount would be deemed settled
upon its receipt of the increased amount of NeoStem securities to be received by RimAsia as part of the Merger consideration, which increase was agreed to in the
July 2009 amendment to the Merger Agreement. If less than $1.6 million had been advanced at that time, the difference was to be paid to NeoStem at the closing
of the Merger. In the event the Merger had not received shareholder approval by October 31, 2009, NeoStem would have been required to repay RimAsia all
payments incurred or made by RimAsia on behalf of NeoStem. The Merger and related transactions were approved at the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on
October 29, 2009. As of October 29, 2009 approximately $1,070,000 had been advanced on behalf of NeoStem and approximately $846,000 had been advanced on
behalf of CBH, by RimAsia. The amount of funds advanced by RimAsia has exceeded the upper limit of $1.6 million resulting in additional funds due RimAsia in
the amount of approximately $316,000, which will be paid to RimAsia from cash due CBH being disbursed in connection with the closing of the Merger.
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The following chart represents the net funds provided by or used in operating, financing and investment activities for each period indicated:

Nine Months Ended
September September
30, 2009 30, 2008
Cash used in operating activities $  (9,511,900) $ (3,368,300)
Cash used in investing activities $ (691,000)  $ (7,300)

Cash provided by financing activities $ 15,620,900 $ 2,135,700

At September 30, 2009 the Company had a cash balance of $5,848,800, working capital of $3,709,400 and stockholders’ deficit of $1,814,200. The Company
incurred a net loss of $14,433,700 for the nine months ended September 30, 2009. Our cash used for operating activities in the nine months ended September 30,
2009 totaled $ 9,511,900, which is the sum of (i) our net loss, adjusted for non-cash expenses totaling $3,928,600 which includes common stock, common stock
options and common stock purchase warrants issued for services rendered in the amount of $3,832,100 and depreciation and amortization of $96,500; (ii) an
increase in cash provided from unearned revenue from advance payments from customers and licensees of $189,200, increases in accounts payable and accrued
expenses of $741,400 and an increase in accrued dividends of $655,900 and; (iii) cash used for payments of security deposits and other assets of $325,400 and
increases in accounts receivable $156,500 and prepaid assets of $111,400.

The Company has opened a research laboratory in Boston, MA to support the research and development requirements of our VSEL™ Technology. The outfitting of
this laboratory has required the Company to purchase approximately $550,000 of laboratory equipment during the period. As development projects expand, the
need for additional capital expenditures for our research laboratory will increase. Our expansion into China resulted in the purchase of several specialized medical
instruments and office equipment that will used to deliver advanced therapies in China totaling approximately $82,600 of capital expenditures. As our plans for
delivery of such services become finalized we expect to acquire additional medical equipment to support this initiative. The balance of our capital expenditures
have been made to improve our communications within the Company and to support additional staff.

In July, 20009, in order to facilitate working capital requirements in China, NeoStem China issued a promissory note to China Xingye Bank in the amount of RMB
1,000,000 ($146,700). The note is due on January 1, 2010 and bears an interest rate of 4.86%. The loan is collateralized by cash in a restricted bank account
totaling 1,229,000 RMB (approximately $180,300).

The Company relied on the RimAsia Notes issued to RimAsia for $1,150,000 and its existing cash balances to meet its cash requirement for the three months ended
March 31, 2009. In April 2009, the Company completed a private placement financing totaling $11 million which was and is being used to fund current

operations. Approximately $1,162,000 of such gross proceeds was utilized to repay the RimAsia Notes plus accrued interest and approximately $473,000 was
utilized to reimburse RimAsia for certain costs advanced by RimAsia in connection with the Company’s expansion activities into China. In June 2009 the
Company completed a second private placement totaling $5 million which will also be used to fund current operations. The Company believes that it will need to
raise additional capital to fund its expansion into advanced technologies and therapies in the US and China including with respect to its VSEL technology licensed
from the University of Louisville and its other regenerative technologies, including relating to anti-aging of skin, wound healing and orthopedic applications. It
currently intends to accomplish this through additional financing activities, acquisitions of revenue generating businesses and ultimately the growth of its revenue
generating activities in China. In addition the Company will seek grants for scientific and clinical studies from the National Institutes of Health and other funding
agencies but there is no assurance that we will be successful in obtaining such grants. It also anticipates that certain of its recent collaborative marketing efforts will
drive revenues particularly in its stem cell collection business. The Company’s history of losses and liquidity problems may make it difficult to raise additional
funds. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in obtaining additional funding on terms acceptable to the Company or otherwise generating
additional capital or revenue. Any equity financing may be dilutive to stockholders and debt financing, if available, may involve significant restrictive covenants.
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SEASONALITY

NeoStem does not believe that its operations are seasonal in nature.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

NeoStem does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
Not applicable to smaller reporting companies.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are the Company’s controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the
reports that the Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported in a complete, accurate and appropriate manner, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.
Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports
that the Company files under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. As of the end of the Company’s third fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2009
covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, with the participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act. Based
on that evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were
effective, at the reasonable assurance level, in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Securities Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and is accumulated and
communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. Due to the inherent limitations of control systems, not all misstatements may be detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that
judgments in decision-making can be faulty and the breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. Our controls and procedures can only provide
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the above objectives have been met.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15, that occurred during
the quarter ended September 30, 2009 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial
reporting.
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NEOSTEM, INC.
PART II

OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Previously reported on the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Not applicable to smaller reporting companies.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Previously reported on the Company’s Current Reports on Form 8-K dated April 13, 2009, June 29, 2009 and July 6, 2009, and as follows:

In January 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant which has been providing investor relation services to the Company since 2005,
pursuant to which this consultant was retained to provide additional investor relations/media relations services from January 1, 2009 to May 31, 2009. In
consideration for providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 40,000 shares of restricted Common
Stock, to vest as to 8,000 shares on the last day of each month of January through May 2009. The issuance of such securities was subject to the approval of the
NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009.

In January 2009, the Company issued to its grant consultant 20,000 shares of restricted Common Stock as a bonus under the consultant’s Consulting Agreement
with the Company dated February 8, 2008, in consideration for such consultant being instrumental in securing the Company’s inclusion in the Department of
Defense Fiscal Year 2009 Appropriations Bill in the net amount of approximately $680,000. The issuance of such securities was subject to the approval of the
NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in January 2009. The Company has entered into a new consulting agreement with such grant consultant for a one-year
term commencing as of January 1, 2009, pursuant to which it will provide assistance to the Company in the following areas: (i) with regard to negotiation, drafting
and finalization of contracts; (ii) in the development of strategic plans; (iii) with regard to funding from various agencies of the State of New Jersey and Federal
government; and (iv) with other assignments it may receive from time to time. In consideration for such services, the consultant will be issued shares of the
Company’s restricted Common Stock equal to a value of $60,000 based on the closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of execution of the
agreement, which has been determined to be 67,416 shares, to vest as to one-half of such shares on June 30, 2009 and the remaining one-half of such shares on
December 31, 2009. The issuance of such securities was subject to the approval of the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009.

In January 2009, the Company issued to a marketing consultant 12,000 shares of restricted Common Stock pursuant to the terms of a three month consulting
agreement entered into in October 2008, scheduled to vest pursuant to the agreement as to 4,000 shares at the end of each 30 day period during the term. The
issuance of such securities was subject to the approval of the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in January 2009.

In February 2009, the Company issued to a consultant a five year warrant to purchase 5,000 shares of restricted Common Stock at a purchase price of $1.40 per
share. This warrant was issued in consideration of services rendered after the expiration of an October 2007 consulting agreement with the Company pursuant to
which this consultant was engaged to create marketing materials for our sales and marketing staff. The issuance of this warrant was subject to the approval of the
NYSE Amex and vested on issuance.

In March 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant which has been providing financial market related services to the Company since 2008,
pursuant to which this consultant was retained to provide additional financial market related services for a three month period. In partial consideration for
providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 25,000 shares of restricted Common Stock, to vest as to
one-third of the shares at the end of each monthly period during the term and a five year warrant to purchase 25,000 shares of restricted Common Stock at a per
share exercise price of $1.00, vesting in its entirety at the end of the term. The issuance of such securities was subject to the approval of the NYSE Amex, which
approval was obtained in May 2009.
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On May 1, 2009, the Company entered into a three year consulting agreement effective March 3, 2009 (the “Effective Date”) whereby the consultant will provide
to the Company consulting services in the area of stem cell therapy in orthopedics for the development of business in Asia. Pursuant to this agreement, as partial
compensation for such services, the Company agreed to issue to this consultant a warrant to purchase up to an aggregate of 24,000 shares of restricted Common
Stock at an exercise price of $0.50 (the closing price of the Common Stock on the Effective Date) which shall vest and become exercisable as to one-third of such
shares on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the Effective Date. The issuance of such securities is subject to the approval of the NYSE Amex.

In April 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant to provide financial market related services to the Company. In partial consideration for
providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 20,000 shares of restricted Common Stock. The issuance of
such securities was subject to the approval of the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009.

In April 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a consultant to provide support services in connection with our pending Merger to the Company. In
partial consideration for providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 10,000 shares of restricted
Common Stock. The issuance of such securities was subject to the approval of the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in May 2009.

In August 2009, the Company entered into a two and one-half month agreement with a consultant to provide web-based and other corporate promotional services to

the Company. In partial consideration for providing services under this agreement, the Company agreed to issue to the consultant an aggregate of 8,000 restricted
shares of Common Stock. The issuance of such securities was subject to the approval of the NYSE Amex, which approval was obtained in September 2009.

The offer and sale by the Company of the securities described above were made in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), for transactions by an issuer not involving a public offering. The offer and sale of such securities were
made without general solicitation or advertising to “accredited investors,” as such term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities
Act.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

(@) Exhibits
Exhibit Description Reference
2(a) Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger, made and entered into as of the 1st day of July, 2009, by and among NeoStem, Annex A

Inc., CBH Acquisition LLC, China Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc., and China Biopharmaceuticals Corp. (1)

2(b) Amendment No. 2 to Agreement and Plan of Merger, made and entered into as of the 27" day of August, 2009, by and among Annex A
NeoStem, Inc., CBH Acquisition LL.C, China Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc., and China Biopharmaceuticals Corp. (1)

2(c) Notice dated July 13, 2009 regarding termination of Share Exchange Agreement (2) 2.2
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation with Certificate of Designations for Series D Preferred Stock as certified June 23, 2009 (3) 4.3
3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation filed October 30, 2009 with regard to increase in authorized shares* 3.2
33 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation filed October 30, 2009 with regard to board classification* 3.3
34 Certificate of Designations of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock filed October 30, 2009* 34
3.5 Certificate of Merger of China BioPharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc. with and into CBH Acquisition LLC filed October 30, 2009* 3.5
a undin, reement made as of July 1, and between NeoStem, Inc., China Biopharmaceuticals Holdings, Inc., China L
10 Funding Ag de as of July 1, 2009 by and b NeoStem, Inc., China Bioph icals Holdings, Inc., Chi 10.2
Biopharmaceuticals Corp., and RimAsia Capital Partners L.P. (4)
10(b) Employment Agreement dated July 6, 2009 between NeoStem, Inc. and Alan Harris, M.D., Ph.D. (5) 10.1
d etter Agreement dated July 8, etween NeoStem, Inc. and Catherine M. Vaczy, Esq. L
10 L A dated July 8, 2009 b NeoS I d Catherine M. V: Esq. (5 10.2
10(d) Amendment dated July 29, 2009 to Employment Agreement dated May 26, 2006 with Robin Smith (6) 10.1
10(e) Employment Agreement dated August 17, 2009 between NeoStem, Inc. and Anthony Salerno (1) 10(vvv)
10(f) Separation Agreement and General Release made as of September 29, 2009, by and between Mark Weinreb and NeoStem, Inc. (7)  10(xxx)
10(g) Commercial Lease dated as of September 1, 2009 between NeoStem, Inc. and Rivertech Associates II, LLC, c/o The Abbey Group  10.1
®
10(h) Form of Indemnification Agreement (7) 10.2
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.* 31.1
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.* 31.2
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.** 32.1
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.** 322
1) Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit, numbered as indicated above, to the Company’s Pre-Effective Amendment No. 2 to
Registration Statement on Form S-4/A, File No. 333-160578, which exhibit is incorporated here by reference.
2) Filed as an exhibit, numbered as indicated above, to the Quarterly Report of the Company on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009, which
exhibit is incorporated here by reference.
3) Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit, numbered as indicated above, to the Company’s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to
Registration Statement on Form S-8, File No. 333-159282, which exhibit is incorporated here by reference.
iled as an exhibit, numbered as indicated above, to the Current Report of the Company on Form 8-K, dated July 1, , which exhibit is incorporate
4 Filed hibi bered as indicated ab he C R f the C F 8-K, dated July 1, 2009, which exhibit is i d
here by reference.
iled as an exhibit, numbered as indicated above, to the Current Report of the Company on Form 8-K, dated July 6, , which exhibit is incorporate
5 Filed hibi bered as indicated ab he C R f the C F 8-K, dated July 6, 2009, which exhibit is i d
here by reference.
iled as an exhibit, numbered as indicated above, to the Current Report of the Company on Form 8-K, dated July 29, , which exhibit is incorporate
6 Filed hibi bered as indicated ab he C R f the C F 8-K, dated July 29, 2009, which exhibit is i d
here by reference.
7) Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit, numbered as indicated above, to the Company’s Pre-Effective Amendment No. 4 to
Registration Statement on Form S-4/A, File No. 333-160578, which exhibit is incorporated here by reference.
®) Filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit, numbered as indicated above, to the Company’s Pre-Effective Amendment No. 3 to

Registration Statement on Form S-4/A, File No. 333-160578, which exhibit is incorporated here by reference.

* Filed herewith
** Furnished herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

NEOSTEM, INC. (Registrant)

By: /s/ Robin Smith M.D.

Robin Smith M.D., Chief Executive Officer
Date: November 6, 2009

By: /s/ Larry A. May

Larry A. May, Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 6, 2009
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Delivered 08:01 10/30/2009
FILED 0B:01 aM 10/30/2009
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
NEOSTEM, INC,

Pursuant to Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware,
MeoStem, Ine., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Delaware (the "Corporation”), does hereby certify as follows:

1. The name of the Corporation is NeoStem, Inc. The date of filing of its original
Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware was
September 18, 1980, under the name of Fidelity Medical Services, Inc. The name of the
Corporation was changed to Corniche Group Incorporated by filing a Certificate of
Amendment to the Cerfificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware on September 28, 1995, The name of the Corporation was changed to Phase 111
Medical Inc. by filing a Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on July 24, 2003. The name of the
Corporation was changed io NeoStem, Inc. by filing an Amended and Restated Cerlificate
of [ncorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on August 29, 2006,

2. The Board of Directors of the Corporation has duly adopted a resolution
pursuant to Sectien 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware setting
forth & proposed amendment 1o the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
the Corporation and declaring said amendment to be advisable. The requisite stockholders
of the Corporation have duly approved said propesed amendment in accordance with
Section 242 of the General Comporation Law of the Stale of Delaware. The amendment
amends the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation as
follows:

Section A of Article FOURTH is hereby deleted in its entirety and the following
lanpuage 15 hereby inserted in its stead.

"A. The total number of shares of stock which the Corporation shall have authority
to isgue is 320,000,000 shares, of which 500,000,000 shares are designated as common
stock, having a par value of $0.001 per share ("Common Stock™) and 20,000,000 share are
designated as preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share ("Preferred Stock™)."
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of
Amendment 1o be sipned by its Chief Executive Officer on this £7 day of

Dok ber 2029

NEOSTEM, INC.

Iame: Robin L. Smith
Title: Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
NEOSTEM, INC.

Pursuant to Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware,
NeoStem, Inc., a corpotation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Delaware (the "Corporation"), doez hereby certify as follows:

l. The name of the Corporation is NeoStem, Inc. The date of filing of its origingl
Certificate of Incorporation with the Seeretary of State of the State of Delaware was
September 18, 1980, under the name of Fidelity Medical Services, Inc. The name of the
Cotporation was changed lo Corniche Group Incorporated by filing a Centificate of
Amendment 1o the Certificate of Ineorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of
Defaware on September 28, 1995, The name of the Corporation was changed to Phase [11
Medieal Inc. by filing a Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on July 24, 2003, The name of the
Corporation was changed fo NeoStem, Ine. by filing an Amended and Restared Centificate
of Tncorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on Angust 29, 2006,

7. The Board of Directors of the Corporation has duly adopted a resolution
pursuant 1o Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delawaie setfing
forth a proposed amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of
the Corporation and declaring said amendment to be advisable. The requisite stockholders
of the Corporation have duly approved said proposed amendment in accordance with
Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. The amendment
amends the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation as
follows:

The following text is hereby added to the Corporation’s Amended and Restated
Cenificate of Incorporation as Article ELEVENTH:

"ELEVENTH: For the management of the business and for the conduct of the
affairs of {he Corporation, and for further definition, Hmitation and regulation of the
powers of the Corporation and its Directors and steckholders:

"A, The mumber of Directors constituting the Corporations’ Board of Directors
shall be determined by the Board of Direstors, from time 1o time. The Directors
constituting the Corporation's Board of Directors, other than those who may be elected by
the holders of any classes or series of stock having a preference over the Common Steck
as to dividends or upon liquidation, shall be classified, with respect to the time for which
they severally hold office, into three classes, a3 nearly equal in number as possible, as
shall be determined by the Board of Directors consistent with the terms of this Article

E282WI
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ELEVENTH. The Board shall have the authority to assipn members of the board already
in office to such elnsses at the time the amendment becomes effective. One class shall be
assigned a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 2010, another
class shall be assigned a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in
2011, and another class shall be assigned a term expiring at the annual meeting of
stockholders to be held in 2012, with each class 1o kold office unti] its successor is elecied
and qualified, At each annual meeting of the stockhelders of the Corporation commencing
with the election in 2010, the successors of the class of Directors whose term expires at
that mecting shall be elected to hold office for a term expiring at the annual meeting of
stockholders held in the third year following the year of their election.

“B. Except as otherwise fixed by or pursuant to provisions hereof relating to the
rights of the holders of any class or series of stock having a preference over Commen
Stock as to dividends or upon liguidation to elect additional Directors under specified
circumstances, newly created directorships resuliing from any increase in the number of
Directors and any vacancies on the Board of Directors resulting from death, resignation,
disqualification, removal or other cavse shall be filled by the affiomative vote of a
majority of the remaining Directors then in office, even though less than a quorum of the
Board of Directors, or by a sole remaining Director. Any Director appointed by the Board
of Directors in accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold office and shall be
elected for the remainder of the full term of the class of Directors in which the new
directorship was created or the vacancy occurred and until such Dizector's successor shall
have been elecied and qualified.”
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this ificate of
dment to be signed by its Chief Executive Officer on this 297 day of

oo o 2009

NEOSTEM, INC.

By _
Name: Robin L. Smith
Title: Chief Execative Officer
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Division C’o‘iﬂorations
Delivered 08:01 10/30/2009

; FILED 08:03
CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS I 08 03 A 1 oo
of

SERIES C CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
of
NEOSTEM, INC.

Pursuant to Section 151(g) of the
General Corporation Law of the Sfate of Delaware

NEOSTEM, INC., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of
Delaware (the "Corporation”), does hereby cerfify that, pursuant to the autherity conferred on the
Board of Directors of the Corporation by the Certificate of Incorporation, as amended and
restated to date (the "Certificate of Incorporation"), of the Corporation and in accordance with
Section 151(g) of the Genera! Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, the Board of Directors
of the Corporation adopted the following resolution establishing a series of 8,177,512 shares of
Preferred Stock of the Corporation designated as "Series C Convertible Preferred Stocic:"

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority conferred on the Board of Directors of this
Corparation hy the Certificate of Incorporation, a series of Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per
share, of the Corporation is hereby established and created, and that the designation and number
of shares thereof end the voting and other powers, preferences and relative, participating,
optional or other rights of the shares of such series and the gqualifications, limitations and
restrictions thereof are as follows:

1. Designation and Amount. The shares of such series created hersby shall be
designated as Series C Canvertible Preferred Stock (the "Series C Preferred Stock™) and the
authorized number of shares constituting such series shall be 8,177,512. The agreed staled value
of each of the Series C Preferred Stock shall be $1.00 per share (the "Agreed Stated Value®). The
Series C Preferred Stock shall, with respect to dividend rights, have the entitlements set forth
herein and shall, with respect to rights on liquidation, dissolution and winding up of the affairs of
the Corporation, rank sepior to all classes of Common Stock of the Corporation and, subject to
the rights of any series of Preferred Stock outstanding or that may from time to time come into
existence providing that the Series C Preferred Stock shall rank junior or senior thereto, other
equity securities of the Corporation, Such number of shares may be decreased by resolufion of
the Board of Directors of the Corporation; provided, however, that no decrease shall reduce the
number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock to less than the number of shares then issued and

putstanding,
2. Dividends and Distributions.

{a) Amount. The holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive
an annual dividend of 5% of the Agreed Stated Value (the "Annual Dividend"), payable annually
on the first day of Japvary (the "Annual Dividend Payment Date"). Payment of the Annual
Dividend may be either in cash or in kind as determined by the Board of Director. In the event
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that the Annual Dividend Payment Date shall fall due on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in
the State of Delaware, the dividend due on such date shall be paid on the next day thereafter that
is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday in the State of Delaware, The Annual Dividend shall
be cumulative and shall begin to accrue on cuistanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock from
and after , 2009 (the "Series C [ssuance Date”) on a daily basis computed on the basis of a
365-day year and compmmded annually whether or not the Corporation shall have assets legally
zvailable therefore.

() Limitation on Other Dividends. So long as any shares of Series C Preferred Stock
shall be outstanding, no dividend shall be declared or paid or set apart for payment on any Junior
Stock, unless there shall alse have been declared and paid or set apart for payment on the shares
of Series C Preferred Stock, all accrued and unpaid Annual Dividends. In the event that full
cumnulative dividends on the shares of Series C Preferred Stock have not been declared and paid
or set apart for payment when due, the Corporation shall not declare or pay or set apart fer
payment any dividends or make any other distributions on or make payment on account of the
purchase, redemption or other retirement of any Junior Stock, until full cumulative dividends on
the shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall have been paid or declared and set apart for payment;
provided, however, that the foregoing shall not apply to (i) any dividend payable solely in shares
of any class or series of Junior Stock or (it} the purchase, redemption or conversion of shares of
any Jumior Stock, in exchange solely for shares of Junior Stock.

(c) Timing. Accrued but unpaid Annual Dividends shall cumulate as of each Annual
Dividend Payment Date on which they first become payable whether or not the Corporation shall
have assets legally available for the payment thereof, and shall be payable as provided in this
Section 2.1 and/or as further provided herein.

(d) Waiver. To the fullest extent permitted by law and notwithstanding anything
contained herein to the contrary, the holders of the outstanding shares of Series C Preferred
Stock may waive any Annual Dividend that such holders shall be entitled 10 receive under this
Section 2 by the affirmative vote or written consent of the holders of at least a majority of the
shares of Series C Preferred Stock then outstanding,

(e) Form of Payment. Dividends shall be payable at the option of the Corporation either
in cash or in kind in shares of Series C Preferred Stock or in kind in shares of Common Stock.
Any payment in shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall be based on the Agreed Stated Value.
Any payment in kind in shares of Common Stock shall be made at the Market Value on the
dividend payment date. "Market Value," on a given date, shall mean the average of the closing
sales price of a shate of the Company's Cornmon Stock on the American Stock Exchange, or on
its principal securities exchange or trading market if other than the American Stock Exchange,
on each trading day (excluding each day on which there is no closing price) for a period of ten
(10) consecutive trading days (exciuding each day on which there is mo closing price)
immediately prior to such date.

(f) Junior Srock. "Junior Stock" shall mean (i) the Corporation’s cemmon stock
("Common Stock"), and (ii) each other class or series of the Corporation’s capital stock, whether
common, preferred or otherwise, the terms of which do not provide that shares of such class or




series shall rank senior to or on a parity with shaves of the Series C Preferred Stock as to
distributions of dividends and distributions upon the liquidation, winding-up and dissolution of
the Corporation,

3. Liquidation Preference.

(a) In the event of a (i) liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation, whether
voluntary or invohmtary, (ii) & sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition, in a
single transaction or series of related transactions, by the Corporation of all or substantially all
the assets of the Corporation for cash or (iii) voluntary or involuntary bankrupicy of the
Corporation (subparagraphs (i), (i) and (iii) being collectively referred fo as a "Liquidation
Event"), after payment or provision for payment of debts and other lHabilities of the Corporation,
the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the
assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders, whether such assets are
capital, surplus, or earnings, before and in preference to any payment or declaration and setting
apart for payment of any amount shall be made in respect of any Junior Stock, an amount equal
to $1.125 per share plus an amount equal to all acerued dividends unpaid thereon, whether or not
declared, together with any other dividends declared but unpaid thereon. In the case of property
or in the event that any such securities are restricted, the value of such property or securities shall
be determined by agreement between the Corporation and the holders of a majority of the shares
of Seties C Preferred Stock then outstanding. If upen any Liguidation Event, whether voluntary
or involuntary, the assets to be distributed to the holders of the Series C Preferred Stock shall be
insufficient to permit the payment to such stockholders of the full preferential amounts aforesaid,
then sll of the assets of the Corporation 1o be distributed shall be so distributed ratably to the
holders of the Series C Preferred Stock on the basis of the number of shares of Series C Preferred
Stock held. All shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall rank as to payment upon the occurrence
of any Liquidation Event senior to the Common Stock as provided herein and, unless the terms
of such other series shall provide otherwise, senior to all other series of the Corporation's
preferved stock.

(b) The helder of any shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to receive
any payment owed for such shares under this Section 3 until such holder shall cause to be
delivered to the Corporation (i) the certificate or certificates representing such shares of Series C
Preferred Stock (or a lost stock affidavit and indemnity agreement in form reasonably acceptable
to the Corporation with respect to such shares) and (if) transfer instrument or instruments
satisfactory to the Corporation and sufficient to transfer such shares of Series C Preferred Stock
to the Corporation free of any adverse interest. No interest shall accrue on any payment upon &
Liquidation Event after the due date thereof. After payment of the full amount of the liquidating
distribution to which they are entitled, the holders of shares of the Serjes C Preferred Stock will
not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of assets by the Corporation.

(c) Upon the completion of the distribution required by subparagraph (a) of this Section 3
and subject to any other distribution that may be required with respect to any series of Preferred
Stock that may from time to time come into existence, the remaining assets of the Corporation
svailable for distribution to stockholders shall be distributed among the holders of the Common
Stock, pro rata based on the number of shares held by each such holder.
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4. Conversion Rights.

(a) Conversion, Per Share Conversion Price. Each share of the Series C Prefeired Stock
<hall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof upon exercise in accordance with Section
4(b), without the payment of additional consideration, into such number of fully paid and non-
assessable shares of the Corporation’s Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing
the Agreed Stated Value plus all accrued dividends unpaid thereon, whether or net declared,
together with any other dividends declared but unpaid thereon, by $0.90 (the " Conversion Price")
(as such amount may be adjusted from time to time pursuant to this Certificate of Designations,
the "Per Share Conversion Price").

(b) Conversion Procedures. The optional conversion of shares of Series C Preferred
Stock in accordance with Section 4(a) may be effected by a holder of record thereof by making
written demand for such conversion (a "Conversion Demand") upon the Corporation at its
principal executive offices setting forth thercin: (i) the number of shares to be converted; (ii) the
certificate or certificates representing such shaxes; and (iii) the proposed date of such conversion,
which shall be a business day not less than five (5} nor more than thirty (30) days after the date
of such Conversion Demand {the "Conversion Date"). Within five days of receipt of the
Conversion Demand, the Corporation shall give written notice (a "Conversion Notice™) to such
holder setting forth therein: (i) the address of the place or places at which the certificate o1
certificates representing the shares so to be converted are to be surrendered; and (i) whether the
cerlificate or certificates to be surrendered are required to be indorsed for transfer or
accompanied by a duly executed stock power or other appropriate instrument of assignment and,
if so, the form of such endorsement or power or other instrument of assignment, incleding a
medallicn seal. The Conversion Motice shall be sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, to such
holder at such holder's address as may be set forth in the Conversion Demand. On or before the
Conversion Date, the holder of Series C Preferred Stock to be converted shall surrender the
certificate or certificates representing such shares, duly indorsed for transfer accompanied by a
duly executed stock power or other instrument of assignment, including a medallion seal if the
Conversion Notice so provides, to the Corporation at any place set forth in such notice or, if no
such place is so set forth, at the principal executive offices of the Corporation. As soon as
practicable after the Conversion Date and the surrender of the certificate or certificates
representing such shares, the Corporation shall issue and defiver to such holder, or its nominee, a
certificate or certificates for the number of whole shares of Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion in accordance with the provisions hereof. Upon surrender of certificates of Series C
preferred Stock to be converted in part, the Corporation shall issue a balance certificate
representing the number of full shares of Series C Preferred Stock not so converted.

(¢) Effect of Conmversion. All cutstanding shares of Sexies C Preferred Stock to be
converted pursuant to the Conversion Notice shall, on the Conversion Date, be converted into
Commen Stock for all purposes, notwithstanding the failure of the holder thereof to swrender
sy certificate representing such shares on or prior to such date. On and after the Conversion
Date, (i) no such share of Series C Preferred Stock shall be deemed to be outstanding or be
transferable on the books of the Corporation or the stock transfer agent, if any, for the Series C
Preferved Stock, and (ii) the holder of such shares, as such, shall not be entitied to receive any
dividends or other distributicns (other than any accrued dividends unpaid thereon, whether or not
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declared, together with any other dividends declared but unpaid thereon), to receive notices or 1o
vote such shares or to exercise or 10 enjoy any other powers, preferences or rights in respect
thereof, other than the right, upon surrender of the certificate or certificates representing such
shares, to receive a certificate or certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock into
which such shares shall have been converted. On the Conversion Date, all such shares of Series
C Preferred Stock shall be retived and canceled and shall not be reissued,

(d) Adiustments fo Conversion Price,
(A) The Conversion Price shall be adjusted from time to time as follows:

(i} In case the Corporation shall pay or make a dividend or other distribution on
any ¢lass of capitel stock of the Corporation in Common Stock, the Conversion Price in
effect at the opening of business on the day following the date fixed for the determination
of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or other distribution shall be reduced by
multiplying such Conversion Price by 2 frection of which the numerator shall be the
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to any Common
Stock dividend or distribution and the denominator shall be the sum of such number of
shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to any Common Stock dividerd
or distribution plus the total number of shares constituting such Common Stock dividend
or other disfribution, such reduction to become effective immediately after the opening of
business on the day following the date fixed for such determination. For the purposes of
thiz subparagraph (i), the number of shares of Common Stock at any time outstanding
shall not include shares held in the treasury of the Corporation. The Corporation will not
pay any dividend or make any distribution on shares of Common Stock held in the
treagury of the Corporation.

(ii) In case outstanding shares of Common Steck shall be subdivided into a
greater number of shares of Common Stock and the Series C Preferred Stock is not
similarly subdivided, the Conversion Price in effect at the opening of business on the day
following the day upon which such subdivision becomes effective shall be
proportionately reduced, and, conversely, in case outstanding shares of Common Stock
shall each be combined into a smaller number of shares of Common Stock and the Series
C Preferred Stock is not similarly combined, the Conversion Price in effect at the opening
of business on the day following the day upon which such combination becomes effective
shall be proportionately increased, such reduetion or increase, as the case may be, to
hecome effective immediately after the opening of business on the day following the day
upen which such subdivision or combination becomes effective.

(iii) No adjustment in the Conversion Price shall be required unless such
adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least 1% of such price; provided,
howevez, that any adjustments which by reason of this subparagraph (jii) are not required
to be made shall be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment.

{(iv) Whepever the Conversion Price is adjusted as herein provided, (1) the
Corporation shall promptly file with any Conversion Agent a certificate of a firm of




independent public accountants setiing forth the Conversion Price after such adjustment
and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment, and the manner
of computing the same, which certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the correctness
of such adjustment, and (y) a notice stating that the Conversion Price has been adjusted
and setting forth the adjusted Conversion Price shall forthwith be given by the
Corporation to any Conversion Agent and mailed by the Corporation 1o each holder of
shares of Series C Preferred Stock at their last address as the same appears on the bocks
of the Corporation.

(B3) In case of any consolidation of the Corporation with, or merger of the Corporation
into, any other entity (other than a merger or consolidation in which the Corporation is the
continuing corporation) or any sale or conveyance to another corporation of the property of the
Corporation as an entirety or substantially as an entirety, or in the case of a statutory exchange of
securities with another corporation, or any reclassification of shares, the Conversion Price shall
not be adjusted but edch holder of a share of Series C Preferred Stock then outstanding shall have
the right thereafter to convert such share only into the kind and amount of securities, cash and
other property which such holder would have owned or have been entitled to receive
immediately after such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance, exchange or reclassification had
such share of Series C Preferred Stock been converted immediaiely prior to such consolidation,
merger, sale, conveyance, exchange or reclassification. Provision shall be made in any such
consolidation, merger, sale, conveyance, exchange or reclassification for adjustments in the
Conversion Price which shall be as nearly equivalent as may be practicable to the adjustments
provided for in Section (A). The above provisions shall similarly apply to successive
consolidations, mergers, sales, conveyances, exchange or reclassification.

For purposes of this Section 4, "Common Stock” includes any stock of any class of the
Corporation which has no preference in respect of dividends or of amounts payable in the event
of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation and
which is not subject to redemption by the Corporation. However, subject to the provisions of
paragraph (B) above, shares issuable on conversion of shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall
include only shares of the class designated as Common Stock of the Corporation on the date of
the initial issuance of Series C Preferred Stock by the Corporation, or shares of any class or
classes resulting from any reclassification or reclassifications thereof and which have no
preference in respect of dividends or of amounts payable in the event of any voluntary or
involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation and which are not subject
to redemption by the Corporation

In case;

(i) the Corporation shall declare a stock split, stock dividend (or any ather distribution)
on its Common Stock that wonld cause an adjustment to the Conversion Price of the Series C
Preferred Stock pursuant to the terms of subparagraph (i} of Paragraph (A) above; or

(i) the Corporation shall authorize the granting to the holders of its Common Stack of
rights or warranis to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital steck of any class or of any
other rights; or




(i) of any reclassification of the Commoen Steck of the Corporation (other than a
subdivision or combination of its outstanding shares of Common Steck), or of any consolidation,
merger or share exchange to which the Corporation is a party and for which approval of any
stockholders of the Corporation is required, or of the sale or conveyance, of the property of the
Corporation as an entivety or substantially as an entirety; or

(iv) of the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the
Corporation;

then the Corporation shall cause to be filed with any Conversion Agent, and shall cause to be
mailed 1o all holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock at each such holder's last address as
the same appears on the books of the Corperation, at least 20 days (or 10 days in any case
specified in clause (i) or (i) above) prior to the applicable record or effective date hercinafier
specified, a notice stating (x) the date on which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such
dividend, distribution, rights or warrants, or, il a record is not to be taken, the date as of which
the holders of Common Stock of record to be entifled to such dividend, distribution, rights or
warrants are to be determined, or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation,
merper, share exchange, sale, conveyance, dissolution, liquidation or winding up is expected to
become effective, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of Commen Stock of record
shall be entitled to exchange their shares of Common Stock for securities, cash or other propesty
deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, share exchange, sale, conveyance,
dissolution, liquidation or winding up. Neither the failure to give such notice nor any defect
therein shall affect the legality or validity of the proceedings described in clavses (i) through (iv)
abave.

(C) All shares of Series C Preferred Stock converted as herein provided shall no longer
be deemed to be outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares, including the rights, if
any, to receive notices, to vote and to further accrual of dividends, if any, shall immedsately
cease and terminate upon such conversion (except only the right of the holder, thereof to receive
shares of the Common Stock and cash in lieu of actual shares in exchange therefor pursuant to
the term hereof.).

5. Mandatory Conversion.

(@) Trigger Events. Beginning any time after the Series C Issuance Date, if the closing
price of the sale of shares of Common Stock on the NYSE Amex (or the Corporation's principa
securities exchange, if other than the NYSE Amex) exceed £2.50 per share (subject 10
appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or other
similar recapitalization with respect to the Common Stock), for a period of twenty (20) out of
thirty (30) consecutive trading days, and if the dollar value of the trading volume of the Common
Stock for cach day during such twenty (20) out of thirty (30) consecutive trading days equals or
exceeds $250,000, the Corporation may require the holders of Series C Preferred Stock 1o
convert the Preferred Stock to Common Stock, on ten (10) days notfice (the "Mandatory
Conversion Time"), based on the Conversion Price.




(b) Procedural Requiremenis. All holders of record of shares of Series C Preferred Stock
shall be sent written notice of the Mandatory Cenversion Time and the place designated for
mandatory conversion of all such shares of Series C Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 5.
Upon receipt of such notice, each holder of shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall surrender
his, her or its certificate or certificates for all such shares {or, if such holder allepes that such
certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed, a [ost certificate affidavit and agreement reasonably
acceptable to the Corporation to indemnify the Corporation against any claim that may be made
against the Corporation on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of such certificate) to
the Corporation at the place designated in such notice. If so required by the Corporation,
certificates surrendered for conversion shall be endorsed or accompanied by written instrument
or instruments of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Corporation, including medallion seal, duly
executed by the registered holder or by his, her or its attorney duly authorized in writing, All
rights with respect to the Series C Preferred Stock converted pursuant to Section 5, including the
rights, if any, to receive notices and vote (other than as a holder of Commeon Stock), will
terminate 2t the Mandatory Conversion Time (notwithstanding the failure of the holder or
holders thereof to surrender the certificates at or prior to such time), except only the rights of the
holders thereof, upon surrender of their certificate or certificates (or lost certificate affidavit and
agreement) therefor, to receive the items provided for in the next sentence of this Section 5(b).
As soon as practicable after the Mandatary Conversion Time and the surrender of the certificate
or certificates (or lost certificate affidavit and agreement) for Series C Preferred Stock, the
Corporation shall issue and deliver to such holder, or to his, her or its nominees, a certificate or
certificates for the number of full shares of Common Stock issuable on such conversion in
accordance with the provisions hereof, together with cash as provided in Section 11 in lieu of
any fraction of a share of Common Stock otherwise issuable upon such conversion and the
payment of any declared but unpaid dividends on the shares of Series C Preferted Stock
converted. Such converted Series C Preferred Stock shall be retired and canceled and may not be
rejscued as shares of such series, and the Corporation may thereafier take such appropriate action
(without the need for stockholder action) as may be necessary to reduce the authorized number
of shares of Series C Prefarred Stock accordingly.

6. Redemption.

(2) Optianal Redemption. Prior to the seventh anniversary of the Series C Issuance Daie,
the Corporation may at any time it may lawfully do so, at the option of the Board of Directors
and affer giving the holders of shares Series C Preferred Stock written notice of Directors and
after giving the holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock written notice thereof containing
the redemption date (which date shall not be less than 20 days from the date of such notice) (the
“Redemption Date") and offering the holders of the shares of Series C Preferred Stock at least
such 20 days to convert all such shares into shares of Common Stock pursuant to Section 4,
redeem in whole, but not in part, all the shares of Series C Preferred Stock then outstanding by
paying in cash, for each share, an amount equal to the sum of (i) the Original Series C Jssue Price
and (i) all accrued but unpaid Annual Dividends on such share (such sum, as adjusted for any
stock splits, dividends combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations, reclassifications or the like,
the "Opticnal Redemption Price”).

{b) Mandatory Redemption. At any time following the seventh anniversary of the Series
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C Issuance Date, within sixty (60) days after the receipt by the Corporation of the wriiten request
of the holders of not less than a majority of the shares of Series C Preferred Stock then
outstanding, the Corporation shall redeem all of the shares of Series C Preferred Stock {or, if
fess, the maximum amount it may lawfully redeem) by paying in cash, for each share, an amount
equal to the sum of (i) the Original Series C Issue Price, and (ii) all acerued but unpaid Annual
Dividends on such share (such sum, as adjusted for any stock splits, dividends combinations,
subdivisions, recapitalizations, reclassifications or the like, the "Mandatory Redemption Price").

7. Voting Rights. Holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock shail not be entitled to
vote, as a separate class or otherwise on any matter, and their consent shall not be required for
any corporate action, except as otherwise required by law or as expressly provided in this
Certificate of Designations or the Certificate of Incorperation.

8. Amendments. For so long as any shares of Series C Preferred Stock remain
outstanding, consent of the holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of the
Series C Preferred Stock voting together as a class shall be required for any amendment to this
Certificate of Designations or any waivers of the rights of the holders of shares of Series C
Preferred Stock or under any other agreement to which all of the halders of shares of Series C
Preferred Stock are a party.

9. Restrictions on Transfer. Each certificate representing shares of Series C Preferred
Stock and each certificate representing shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of any
shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall be stamped or otherwise imprinted with a legend in
substantially the following form:

*THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE AND ANY
SHARES ACQUIRED UPON THE CONVERSION OF THE SHARES
REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT ©OF 1933 AND MAY NOT BE
TRANSFERRED IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR
AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM UNDER SUCH ACT, EXCEPT
UNDER  CIRCUMSTANCES WHERE  NEITHER  SUCH
REGISTRATION NOR SUCH AN EXEMPTION 1S REQUIRED BY
Law."

10. Reservation of Shares. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and keep
available, out of its authorized and un-issued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of
effecting the conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock, including shares of Series C Preferred
Stock issued as payment of dividends, such number of shares of its Common Stock as shall be
sutficient to effect the conversion of all shares of Series C Preferred Siock from time to time
outstanding.

11. Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued upon
conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock. In lieu of any fractional shares to which the holder
would otherwise be entitled, the Corporation shall pay cash equal to such fraction multiplied by




the fair market value of a share of Common Stock as determined in good faith by the Board of
Directors of the Corporation, or it may round to the nearest number of whole shares, in the
Board's sole discretion. Whether er not fractional shares would be issuable upon such conversion
shall be determined on the basis of the total number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock the
holder is at the time converting into Common Stock and the apgregate number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon such conversion.

12. Severability of Provisions. Whenever possible, each provision hereof shall be
interpreted in a manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision
hereof is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be
ineffactive only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating or otherwise
adversely affecting the remaining provisions hereof. If a court of competent jurisdiclion should
determine that a provision hereof would be valid or enforceable if a period of time were extended
or shortened or a particular percentage were increased or decreased, then such court may make
such change as shall be necessary to render the provision in question effective and valid under
applicable law.

13. Status of Reacquired Shares. Sharcs of Series C Prefemed Sfock issued and
reacquired by the Corporation (including, without limitation, shares of Series C Preferred Stock
which have been converted into Common Stock) shall have the status of autherized and wnissued
shares of Preferred Stock, undesignated as to series, subject to later issuance,

14. Preemptive Rights. Holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock are not entitied to
any preemptive or subscription rights in respect to any sccurities of the Corporatian.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the statements contained in the foregoing resolutions
creating and designating the said Series C issue of Preferred Stock and fixing the number, voting
tights, powers, preferences and relative, optional, participating, and other special rights and the
qualifications, limitations, restrictions, and other distinguishing characteristics thereof shall,
upon the effective date of said series, be deemed to be included in and be a part of the Certificate
of Incorporation of the Corporation pursuant to the provisions of Sections 104 ard 151 of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, NeoStern, Inc. has caused this Certificate to be signed on its
behalf by its Chief Executive Officer, this 29%day of _ O \D\e £~ , 2009.

NEOSTEM, INC.

Nafme- Robin L. Smith
Title: Chief Executive Officer
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Delaware ...

The First State

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF MERGER, WHICH MERGES:

"CHINA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS HOLDINGS, INC.", A DELAWARE
CORPORATION,

WITH AND INTC "CBH ACQUISITION LLC" UNDER THE NAME OF "CBH
ACQUISITION LLC", A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ORGANIEZED AND
EXISTING UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE, AS RECEIVED
AND FILED IN THIS OFFICE THE THIRTIETH DAY OF OCTOBER, A _D.
2008, AT 8:04 O'CLOCK A_M.

A FILED COPY OF THIS CERTIFICATE HAS BEEN FORWARDED T0 THE

NEW CASTLE COUNTY RECCRDER OF DEEDS.

YOGS

feffiey W. BuBleck, Secretary of State

4617908 8100M AUTHE, TON: 7613283

090977303 DATE: 10-30-09

¥ou may verily this cextificate online
at corp. delaware, gov/authver, shimi




Division Corporations
Delivered 08:01 AN 10/30/2009
| FILED 08:04 AM 10/30/2009
ERV 080977303 -~ 4617908 FILE

CERTIFICATE OF MERGER
oF

CHINA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS HOLDINGS, INC.
{a Delaware corporation)

AND

CEH ACQUISITION LLC
{a Delaware Hmited hability company)

Pursuant to Title 8, Section 264(c) of the Delaware General Corporation Law and
Titls 6, Scction 18-209 of the Limited Liability Company Act, the undersipned limited
Jishility company executed the following Certificate of Merger:

FIRST: The name of the surviving limited liability company is CBH Acquisition
LLC, 2 Delaware limited liability company, and the name of the corporation being
merged into this surviving limited liability company is China Biopharmaceuticals
Holdings, Inc., 4 Delaware corporation.

SECOND: The Agreement and Plan of Merger has been approved, adopted,
certified, executed and acknowledged by each of the constituent entitics.

THIRD: The name of the surviviag limited lisbility company is CBH
Acquisition LLC.

FOURTH: ‘The merger is to become effective upon filing.

FIFTH: The Agreement and Plan of Merger is on file at 420 Lexmgton Avenue,
Suite 450, New York, NY 10170, the place of business of the surviving limited lability
company.

SIXTH: A copy of the Agreement and Plan of Merger will be furnished by the
surviving limited liability company on request, without cost, to any member of the
constituent limited liability company or stockholder of the constituent corporation,

FrEzlidl
TR0 1TTTORNS




N WITNESS WHEREOF, said surviving limited lizhility company has
caused this Certificate of Merger to be signed by an autherized persan, the ﬁ.ﬂa}' of

OORpRE~ 2009,
CEH AV?/LEC
B!lr: L] /

Mame: Robin Smith MD
Title: Avthonized Person




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Robin Smith, M.D., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of NeoStem, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this quarterly report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: November 6, 2009
/s/ Robin Smith, M.D.

Name: Robin Smith, M.D.
Title: Chief Executive Officer of NeoStem, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 has been provided to NeoStem, Inc. and will be retained by NeoStem, Inc. and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Larry A. May, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of NeoStem, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this quarterly report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: November 6, 2009
/s/ Larry A. May

Name: Larry A. May
Title: Chief Financial Officer of NeoStem, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 has been provided to NeoStem, Inc. and will be retained by NeoStem, Inc. and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of NeoStem, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Robin Smith, M.D., Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Company as of the dates presented and
the results of operations of the Company for the periods presented.

Dated: November 6, 2009

/s/ Robin Smith, M.D.
Robin Smith, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter
63 of Title 18, United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Form 10-Q or as a separate disclosure document.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to NeoStem, Inc. and will be retained by NeoStem, Inc. and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of NeoStem, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2009 filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Larry A. May, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended ; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Company as of the dates presented and
the results of operations of the Company for the periods presented.

Dated: November 6, 2009

/s/ Larry A. May
Larry A. May
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter
63 of Title 18, United States Code) and is not being filed as part of the Form 10-Q or as a separate disclosure document.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to NeoStem, Inc. and will be retained by NeoStem, Inc. and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




